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NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the 31 Annual General Meeting of the members of ALOK INDUSTRIES LIMITED (CIN:
L17110DN1986PLC000334) will be held on Thursday the 27" day of December, 2018 at 12.00 noon at Alok Public
School, Alok City, Silvassa-Khanvel Road, Silvassa — 396230, Union Territory of Dadra and Nagar Haveli, to transact the
following business:

BACKGROUND:

This is to apprise the members that pursuant to an application made by State Bank of India, the Hon’ble National
Company Law Tribunal, Ahmedabad bench (“Adjudicating Authority”), vide its order dated 18 July 2017, had ordered
the commencement of the corporate insolvency resolution (“CIR”) process in respect of your company under the
provisions of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (the “Code”). Thereafter, in accordance with Section 17 of the
Code, the powers of the Board stood suspended and Mr. Ajay Joshi was appointed as interim resolution professional
of the Company who was later confirmed as Resolution Professional of the Company on 16 August, 2017 for the
management of the affairs of the Company (“RP”/ “Resolution Professional”).

During the CIR process, only one resolution plan dated 12 April, 2018 (“Resolution Plan”) was received from JM
Financial Asset Reconstruction Company Limited, JM Finance ARC — March 18 Trust and Reliance Industries Limited
jointly (“Resolution Applicants”).

Pursuant to the order of the Adjudicating Authority dated 11 June, 2018 and in light of the Ordinance dated 6 June
2018, meetings of the committee of creditors (“CoC”) were convened by the RP on 18 June 2018 and 20 June, 2018
where, the CoC approved the Resolution Plan with the requisite assenting majority votes (72.192%).

Further, pursuant to the order of the Adjudicating Authority dated 25 June 2018, the RP has filed an Application before
the Adjudicating Authority (“Application”) for approval of a Resolution Plan. The Application is currently pending
adjudication by the Adjudicating Authority.

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To consider and adopt (a) the audited financial statement of the Company for the financial year ended March
31, 2018 and the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon; and (b) the audited consolidated
financial statement of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2018 and the report of Auditors
thereon and in this regard, pass the following resolutions as Ordinary Resolutions:

(a) “RESOLVED THAT the audited financial statement of the Company for the financial year ended March 31,
2018 and the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon laid before this meeting, be and are
hereby considered and adopted.”

(b) “RESOLVED THAT the audited consolidated financial statement of the Company for the financial year
ended March 31, 2018 and the report of Auditors thereon laid before this meeting, be and are hereby
considered and adopted.”

2.  Toappoint Mr. Surendra B. Jiwrajka, who retires by rotation as a Director and in this regard, pass the following
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 152, of the Companies Act, 2013, and all other
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (including any amendment thereto or re-enactment
thereof for the time being in force) read with relevant provisions of the Articles of Association of the Company
and subject to such sanctions as may be necessary, Mr. Surendra B. Jiwrajka (DIN: 00173525), who was already
serving the Company as its Director with effect from 27 December 2013 and whose term of office expires at this
Annual General Meeting in terms of Section 161 of the Act and in respect of whom the Company has pursuant to
Section 160 of the Act received a notice in writing proposing his candidature for the office of Director, is hereby
appointed as Director, liable to retire by rotation.”



To appoint Mr. Tulsi Tejwani, who retires by rotation as a Director and in this regard, pass the following
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, and all other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (including any amendment thereto or re-enactment thereof for
the time being in force) read with relevant provisions of the Articles of Association of the Company and subject
to such sanctions as may be necessary, Mr. Tulsi Tejwani (DIN: 07423670), who was already serving the Company
as its Director with effect from 24 September 2016 and whose term of office expires at this Annual General
Meeting in terms of Section 161 of the Act and in respect of whom the Company has pursuant to Section 160 of
the Act received a notice in writing proposing his candidature for the office of Director, is hereby appointed as
Director, liable to retire by rotation.”

To appoint Mr. Senthilkumar M.A., who retires by rotation as a Director and in this regard, pass the following
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, and all other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (including any amendment thereto or re-enactment thereof for
the time being in force) read with relevant provisions of the Articles of Association of the Company and subject
to such sanctions as may be necessary Mr. Senthilkumar M.A. (DIN: 07421184), who was already serving the
Company as its Director with effect from 24 September 2016 and whose term of office expires at this Annual
General Meeting in terms of Section 161 of the Act and in respect of whom the Company has pursuant to
Section 160 of the Act received a notice in writing proposing his candidature for the office of Director, is hereby
appointed as Director, liable to retire by rotation.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

5.

To ratify the remuneration of Cost Auditors for the financial year ending March 31, 2019 and in this regard,
pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force), the remuneration, as approved by the
Resolution Professional and as set out in the Statement annexed to the Notice convening this Meeting, to be
paid to the Cost Auditors appointed by the Resolution Professional, to conduct the audit of cost records of the
Company for the financial year ending March 31, 2019, be and is hereby ratified.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Resolution Professional has all powers under the Code to take such actions, and
execute all such documents, as may be necessary and applicable to give effect to the above resolution.”

K. H. Gopal
Company Secretary

Mumbai, 28 November 2018

Registered Office:

17/5/1 & 521/1, Village Rakholi / Saily,

Silvassa — 396 230, Union Territory of Dadra & Nagar Haveli
CIN: L17110DN1986PLC000334

Website: www.alokind.com E-mail: info@alokind.com

Tel No.0260-6637000; Fax No0.0260-2645289



31t Annual Report - 1°* April 2017 to 31* March 2018

NOTES:

1.

10.

The Explanatory Statement, pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act), relating to the
Special Business to be transacted at the Annual General Meeting (Meeting) is annexed hereto and forms part of
this Notice.

A member entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote on a poll
instead of himself and the proxy need not be a member of the Company. The instrument appointing the proxy
should, however, be deposited at the registered office of the Company not less than forty-eight hours before
the commencement of the Meeting.

Pursuant to Section 105 of the Companies Act, 2013, a person can act as a proxy on behalf of Members not
exceeding fifty in number and holding in the aggregate not more than ten percent of the total share capital of
the Company carrying voting rights. A Member holding more than ten percent of the total share capital of the
Company carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as a proxy and such person shall not act as proxy
for any other person or shareholder. The holder of proxy shall prove his/her identity at the time of attending the
Meeting.

Attendance slip, proxy form and route map of the venue of the Meeting are annexed hereto.

Corporate Members intending to send their authorised representatives to attend the meeting pursuant to
Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013 are requested to send to the Company, a certified copy of the relevant
board resolution together with the specimen signatures of their representative(s) authorised under the said
board resolution to attend and vote on their behalf at the meeting.

The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company shall remain closed from 21t December,
2018 to 27" December 2018, both days inclusive, for the purpose of Annual General Meeting.

Pursuant to Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013, Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and Administration)
Rules, 2014 as amended by the Companies (Management and Administration) Amendment Rules, 2015 and
Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Company is
providing facility for voting by electronic means (e-voting) through an electronic voting system which will include
remote e-voting and the business set out in the Notice will be transacted through such voting. Information and
instructions including details of user Id and password relating to e-voting are sent herewith. Once the vote on
a resolution is cast by a member, whether partially or otherwise, the member shall not be allowed to change
it subsequently or cast the vote again. The members who have cast their vote(s) by using remote e-voting may
also attend the Meeting but shall not be entitled to cast their vote(s) again at the Meeting.

In terms of the provisions of Section 152 of the Act, Mr. Surendra Jiwrajka, Mr. Tulsi Tejwani and Mr. Senthilkumar
M.A., Directors, retire by rotation at the Meeting.

Mr. Surendra Jiwrajka, Mr. Tulsi Tejwani and Mr. Senthilkumar M.A. are interested in the Ordinary Resolutions
set out at Item Nos. 2, 3 and 4, respectively, of the Notice with regard to their re-appointment. Mr. Ashok
Jiwrajka-Director and Mr. Dilip Jiwrajka-Director and their relatives employed with the company, being related
to Mr. Surendra Jiwrajka may be deemed to be interested in the resolution set out at Item No.2 of the Notice.
Save and except the above, none of the other Directors/ Key Managerial Personnel of the Company / Resolution
Professional / their relatives are in any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the Ordinary
Business set out under Item Nos. 2 to 4 of the Notice.

Pursuant to Regulation 36 (3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015,
and Secretarial Standard on General Meetings, particulars of the Directors seeking re-appointment at the Annual
General Meeting are provided in the “Annexure” to the Notice.

There is no requirement to place the matter relating to appointment of Auditors for ratification by members at
every annual General Meeting as per notification dated May 7, 2018 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs,
New Delhi. Accordingly, no resolution is proposed for ratification of Auditors, who were appointed in the Annual
General Meeting, held on September 24, 2016 for a consecutive period of 5 years.



11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

Members/ Proxies / Authorised Representatives are requested to bring to the Meeting necessary details of their
shareholding, attendance slip(s) duly completed and signed mentioning therein details of their DP ID and Client
ID/ Folio No and copies of Annual Report. In case of joint holders attending the Meeting, only such joint holder
who is higher in the order of names will be entitled to vote at the Meeting.

Relevant documents referred to in the Notice are open for inspection by the members at the Registered Office
of the Company on all working days (i.e. except Saturdays, Sundays and Public Holidays) during business hours
up to the date of the Meeting. The aforesaid documents will be also available for inspection by members at the
Meeting.

Members are requested to notify immediately any change of their address:
(a) To their Depository Participants (DPs) in respect of their electronic share accounts, and

(b) To the Company at its Registered Office address or Link Intime India Private Limited, the Registrar and
Share Transfer Agent of the Company at M/s. Link Intime India Private Limited C-101, 247 Park, LBS Marg,
Vikhroli (West) Mumbai-400083, India, Tel: +91 022 49186000, Fax: +91 022 49186060, in respect of their
physical shares, if any, quoting their folio nos.

Shareholders who have not so far encashed their dividend warrants/ demand drafts for the financial years
ended 31% March, 2012 and 30™ September, 2013 may immediately approach the Company for revalidation
of unclaimed dividend warrants/ demand drafts. Information in respect of the unclaimed dividend as on the
date of the previous AGM of the Company held on 29t September, 2017 has been uploaded on the website of
the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (www.iepf.gov.in.) and on the website of the Company (www.alokind.com).
Members are requested to note that dividends that are not claimed within seven years from the date of transfer
to the Company’s Unpaid Dividend Account, will, as per Section 124 of the Act, be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund (IEPF). Shares for which dividend remains unclaimed for seven consecutive years
will be transferred to the IEPF as per Section 123 of the Act and the applicable law.

SEBI has decided that securities of listed companies can be transferred only in dematerialised form from a cut-
off date, to be notified. In view of the above and to avail various benefits of dematerialisation, members are
advised to dematerialise shares held by them in physical form.

Due dates for transfer of unclaimed/unpaid dividends for the financial year 2011-12 and thereafter to IEPF:

Financial year ended

Date Declaration

Last date for claiming

Due date for Transfer to

unpaid dividend IEPF
31.03.2012 14.08.2012 13.08.2019 12.10.2019
30.09.2013 27.12.2013 26.12.2020 26.01.2021

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of Permanent Account Number
(PAN) by every participant in securities market. Members holdings shares in electronic form are, therefore,
requested to submit the PAN to their Depository Participants with whom they are maintaining their demat
accounts. Members holding shares in physical form can submit their PAN details to the Company / Registrars
and Transfer Agents, M/s. Link Intime India Private Limited.

Members may avail themselves of the facility of nomination in terms of Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013
by nominating in the prescribed form a person to whom their shares in the Company shall vest in the event of
their death. The prescribed form can be obtained from the Company’s R&TA at the aforesaid address. Members
holding shares in electronic form may obtain nomination forms from their respective depository participant.

Members are advised to submit their Electronic Clearing Service (ECS) mandates to the Company’s R&TA at their
aforesaid address to facilitate remittance by means of ECS.

The Company is providing facility for voting by electronic means (e-voting) through an electronic voting system
which include remote e-voting and business set out in the Notice will be transacted through such voting.
Company has appointed Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) as Depository for providing remote
e-voting facility to its Members.
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The facility for voting through ballot paper shall be made available at the AGM and the members attending the
meeting and who have not cast their vote by remote e-voting can exercise their voting right at the meeting
through ballot paper.

The members who have cast their vote by using remote e-voting may also attend the AGM but shall not be
entitled to cast their vote again at the Meeting.

The instructions for shareholders voting electronically are as under:

(vii)

The voting period begins on 24t December 2018 (10.00 am) to 26" December 2018 (5.00 pm). During this
period shareholders’ of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as
on the cut-off date (record date) of 21t December 2018 may cast their vote electronically. The e-voting
module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter.

The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com.

Click on Shareholders / Members

Now Enter your User ID

For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,

For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID,

Members holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the Company.
Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login.

If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and voted on an
earlier voting of any company, then your existing password is to be used.

If you are a first time user follow the steps given below:

For Members holding shares in Demat Form and Physical Form

PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric PAN issued by Income Tax Department
(Applicable for both demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders)

. Members who have not updated their PAN with the Company/
Depository Participant are requested to use the sequence number
which is printed on Postal Ballot / Attendance Slip indicated in the PAN
field.

Dividend Bank Details | Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as
OR Date of Birth (DOB) | recorded in your demat account or in the company records in order to login.

. If both the details are not recorded with the depository or company
please enter the member id / folio number in the Dividend Bank details
field as mentioned in instruction (iv).

After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab.

Members holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection screen. However,
members holding shares in demat form will now reach ‘Password Creation’” menu wherein they are
required to mandatorily enter their login password in the new password field. Kindly note that this
password is to be also used by the demat holders for voting for resolutions of any other company on
which they are eligible to vote, provided that company opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. It is
strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep
your password confidential.

For Members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on the resolutions
contained in this Notice.



(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)
(xvi)

(xwvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

(xxi)

(xxii)

Click on the EVSN for the relevant <Company Name> on which you choose to vote.

On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same the option “YES/NO”
for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that you assent to the Resolution
and option NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution.

Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution details.

After selecting the resolution you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A confirmation box will be
displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else to change your vote, click on “CANCEL” and
accordingly modify your vote.

Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.
You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on “Click here to print” option on the Voting page.

If a demat account holder has forgotten the changed password then Enter the User ID and the image
verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the system.

Shareholders can also cast their vote using CDSL’s mobile app m-Voting available for android based
mobiles. The m-Voting app can be downloaded from Google Play Store. Apple and Windows phone users
can download the app from the App Store and the Windows Phone Store respectively. Please follow the
instructions as prompted by the mobile app while voting on your mobile.

Note for Non—Individual Shareholders and Custodians

. Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodian are required
to log on to www.evotingindia.com and register themselves as Corporates.

. A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be emailed
to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

. After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin login and
password. The Compliance User would be able to link the account(s) for which they wish to vote on.

. The list of accounts linked in the login should be mailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and on
approval of the accounts they would be able to cast their vote.

. A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have issued in
favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the scrutinizer
to verify the same.

In case you have any queries or issues regarding e-voting, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions
(“FAQs”) and e-voting manual available at www.evotingindia.com, under help section or write an email to
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

You can also update your mobile number and e-mail id in the user profile details of the folio which may be
used for sending future communication(s).

The voting rights of members shall be as per the number of equity shares held by the Member(s) as on
Friday, 215 December 2018 being the cut-off date and as per the register of members of the Company.
Members are eligible to cast vote electronically only if they are holding shares as on that date.

(xxiii) Any person, who acquires shares of the Company and become member of the Company after dispatch of

the notice and holding shares as of the cut-off date i.e. 21 December 2018 may obtain the login ID and
password by sending a request at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com

(xxiv) A member may participate in the AGM even after exercising his right to vote through remote e-voting but

(xxv)

shall not be allowed to vote again at the AGM.

A person, whose name is recorded in the register of members or in the register of beneficial owners
maintained by the depositories as on the cut-off date only shall be entitled to avail the facility of remote
e-voting as well as voting at the AGM through ballot paper.
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21.

(xxvi) Mr. Virendra G. Bhatt, Practicing Company Secretary (Membership No. 1157) has been appointed for as
the Scrutinizer for providing facility to the members of the Company to scrutinize the voting and remote
e-voting process in a fair and transparent manner.

(xxvii) The Chairman shall, at the AGM, at the end of discussion on the resolutions on which voting is to be held,
allow voting with the assistance of scrutinizer, by use of “Ballot Paper” for all those members who are
present at the AGM but have not cast their votes by availing the remote e-voting facility.

(xxviii) The Scrutinizer shall after the conclusion of voting at the general meeting, will first count the votes cast
at the meeting and thereafter unblock the votes cast through remote e-voting in the presence of at least
two witnesses not in the employment of the Company and shall make, not later than 48 hours of the
conclusion of the AGM, a consolidated scrutinizer’s report of the total votes cast in favour or against, if
any, to the Chairman or a person authorized by him in writing, who shall countersign the same and declare
the result of the voting forthwith.

(xxix) The Results declared along with the report of the Scrutinizer shall be placed on the website of the Company
www.alokind.com and on the website of CDSL immediately after the declaration of result by the Chairman
or a person authorized by him in writing. The results shall also be immediately forwarded to the BSE
Limited & National Stock Exchange of India Limited, Mumbai.

Members desiring any information as regards to Accounts are requested to write to the Company at an early
date so as to enable the management to keep the information ready.
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IMPORTANT COMMUNICATION TO MEMBERS

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has taken a “Green Initiative in the Corporate Governance” by allowing
paperless compliances by the companies and has issued circulars stating that the service of notice /
documents including Annual Report can be sent by e-mail to its members. To support this green initiative
of the Government in full measure, members who have not registered their e-mail address, so far, are
requested to register their e-mail address in respect of electronic holdings with the Depository through
their concerned Depository Participants. We are sure, that as a responsible citizen, you will whole-
heartedly support this initiative and will co-operate with the Company in implementing the same.

11
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Statement Pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

The following Statement sets out the material facts relating to the Special Business mentioned in Notice:
Item No. 5

The Resolution Professional has approved the appointment of M/s. B.J.D. Nanabhoy & Co, Cost Accountants, as Cost
Auditors to conduct the audit of the cost accounts maintained by the Company for the financial year ending 315t March,
2019 and be paid remuneration of Rs.86,000/- p.a. as also the payment of goods and service tax as applicable and
reimbursement of out of pocket expenses incurred by them in connection with the aforesaid audit of the Company.

In terms of the provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014, the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditor has to be ratified by the Members of the Company.
Accordingly, consent of the Members is sought for passing an Ordinary Resolution as set out at item no. 5 of the
Notice for approval of the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors for the financial year ending 31 March, 2019.

The Resolution Professional recommends the approval of the remuneration payable to M/s. B.J.D. Nanabhoy & Co,
Cost Accountants for conducting the cost audit and passing of the resolution set out at item no. 5 of the Notice.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel or Resolution Professional or their relatives are in any way
concerned or interested in the passing of the resolution set out at item no. 5 of the Notice.

12



ANNEXURE TO THE NOTICE

Details of Directors retiring by rotation/seeking re-appointment at the Meeting.

Mr. Surendra Jiwrajka:

Age

60 years

Qualification

B.Com

Experience (including expertise in specific functional
area)/ Brief Resumes

Experience of over three decades in textiles industry.

Terms and Conditions of Re-appointment

Director of the Company liable to retire by rotation.

Remuneration drawn (including sitting fees, if any)

Rs.1,44,75,806.00 for financial year 2017-18 (for
remuneration details including perquisite value, please
refer Annexures to the Board’s Report).

Date of first appointment on the Board

March 12, 1986

Shareholding in the Company as on March 31, 2018

35,121,035 equity shares

Relationship with other Directors/Key Managerial
Personnel

Related to Mr. Ashok Jiwrajka and Mr. Dilip Jiwrajka,
both brothers.

Number of meetings of the Board attended during the
financial year (2017-18)

01

Directorship of other Boards as on March 31, 2018

Alok Knit Exports Private Limited

Aurangabad Textiles & Apparel Parks Limited

Alok Infrastructure Limited

Kesham Developers & Infotech Private Limited (under
liquidation)

Springdale Information and Technologies Private Limited
(under liquidation)

Membership/ Chairmanship of Committees of other | Nil
Boards as on March 31, 2018

Mr. Tulsi Tejwani:
Age 58 years
Quialification B. Com

Experience (including expertise in specific functional
area)/ Brief Resumes

Experience over three decades in Textile Marketing and
Production.

Terms and Conditions of Re-appointment

Whole Time Director of the Company liable to retire by
rotation.

Remuneration last drawn (including sitting fees, if any)

Rs.68,03,652.00 for financial year 2017-18 (for
remuneration details including perquisite value, please
refer Annexures to the Board’s Report).

Remuneration proposed to be paid

Current salary drawn as at present and liable to be
revised as per the terms and conditions of appointment.

Date of first appointment on the Board

September 24, 2016

Shareholding in the Company as on March 31, 2018

4000 shares

Relationship with other
Personnel

Directors/Key Managerial

Not related to any Director/Key Managerial Personnel /
Resolution Professional

Number of meetings of the Board attended during the
financial year (2017-18)

01

Directorship of other Boards as on March 31, 2018

Nil

Membership/ Chairmanship of Committees of other
Boards as on March 31, 2018

Nil
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Mr. Senthilkumar M.A:

Age

53 Years

Qualification

Graduation in Engineering and Post-Graduation in
Management from premier institutes and undergone
specialization in Strategic Management from The
Strategy Academy, Kolkata.

Experience (including expertise in specific functional
area)/ Brief Resumes

Over 30 years of experience in large scale manufacturing
and exports serving reputed brands and retailers across
the globe.

Terms and Conditions of Re-appointment

Whole Time Director of the Company liable to retire by
rotation.

Remuneration last drawn (including sitting fees, if any)

Rs.77,20,092.00 for financial year 2017-18 (for
remuneration details including perquisite value, please
refer Annexures to the Board’s Report).

Remuneration proposed to be paid

Current salary drawn as at present and liable to be
revised as per terms and conditions of appointment.

Date of first appointment on the Board

September 24, 2016

Shareholding in the Company as on March 31, 2018

Nil

Relationship with other
Personnel

Directors/Key Managerial

Not related to any Director/Key Managerial Personnel /
Resolution Professional.

Number of meetings of the Board attended during the
financial year (2017-18)

01

Directorship of other Boards as on March 31, 2018

Nil

Membership/ Chairmanship of Committees of other
Boards as on March 31, 2018

Nil
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DIRECTORS’REPORTTOTHESHAREHOLDERS

This is to apprise the members that pursuant to an application made by State Bank of India, the Hon’ble National
Company Law Tribunal, Ahmedabad bench (“Adjudicating Authority”), vide its order dated 18 July 2017 had ordered
the commencement of the corporate insolvency resolution (“CIR”) process in respect of your company under the
provisions of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (the “Code”). Thereafter, in accordance with Section 17 of the
Code, the powers of the Board of Directors (“Board”) stood suspended and Mr. Ajay Joshi was appointed as interim
resolution professional of the Company who was later confirmed as Resolution Professional of the Company on 16
August, 2017 for the management of the affairs of the Company (“RP”/ “Resolution Professional”).

In compliance with the provisions of Section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, a report containing the details and
information as required to be disclosed in the Directors’ Report to the shareholders of the Company is provided
hereunder.

During the CIR process, only one resolution plan dated 12 April, 2018 (“Resolution Plan”) was received from JM
Financial Asset Reconstruction Company Limited, JM Finance ARC — March 18 Trust and Reliance Industries Limited
jointly (“Resolution Applicants”).

Further, pursuant to promulgation of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy (Amendment) Ordinance dated 6 June 2018
(“Ordinance”), the voting threshold for approval of Resolution Plan was reduced from 75% to 66% of the voting share
of the financial creditors. The Adjudicating Authority in an application filed by Alok Employees Benefit & Welfare
Trust, vide its order dated 11 June 2018 directed the committee of creditors of Company (“COC”) for a re-look and
proper consideration of the Resolution Plan (“Order”). Accordingly, in compliance with the Order, the Resolution Plan
submitted by the Resolution Applicants was again placed before the COC for consideration by the RP under Section
30 (4) of the Code (as amended by the Ordinance). The Resolution Plan was approved by the COC with 72.192%
assenting voting share of the financial creditors. Subsequently, vide its order dated 25 June, 2018, the Adjudicating
Authority granted liberty to the RP to file for the approval of the Resolution Plan under Section 31 of the Code. The
application filed by the RP for approval of Resolution Plan on 11 July, 2018 is currently pending adjudication before
the Adjudicating Authority.

In terms of Section 25 of the Code, the Company is continuing to operate as a going concern. Further, since the
application for approval of the Resolution Plan is pending adjudication before the Adjudicating Authority, the financial
statements are being presented on a going concern basis.

It is pertinent to note that certain financial creditors of the Company have filed applications before the Adjudicating
Authority as well as the Hon’ble National Company Law Appellate Tribunal, New Delhi (“Appellate Tribunal”), inter
alia, challenging the Resolution Plan of the Company. These applications are pending adjudication by the respective
tribunals. In the event, the Adjudicating Authority/Appellate Tribunal (or any subsequent appeals) result in the
rejection of the Resolution Plan, the Company may be liquidated upon the order of the Adjudicating Authority/
Appellate Tribunal.

This Report was discussed in a meeting held with the Key Management persons and thereafter taken on record by the
Resolution Professional. Accordingly, Report for the year ended 31 March, 2018 is as under.

1.  FINANCIAL RESULTS:
(Rs.in crore)

Particulars Standalone Consolidated
31.03.2018 31.03.2017 31.03.2018 31.03.2017

Revenue from operations 5381.95 8326.07 5562.08 8919.42

Operating  Profit/ (Loss) before (12993.75) (1839.83) (13311.20) (1390.37)

Interest, Depreciation and Taxes

Profit/ Loss Before Tax (after (18204.43) (5625.98) (18567.15) (5392.88)

exceptional items)

Tax Expenses 11.19 (2123.56) 10.43 (2320.85)

(including Deferred Tax)

Minority Interest and Share in Profit 0.00 0.00 (0.48) (11.11)

of Associates

Profit after Tax (18206.82) (3502.67) (18578.06) (3083.14)
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2.

COMPANY’S PERFORMANCE:

The total sales of the Company for the year under review amounted to Rs.5381.95 crores (including exports with
incentives of Rs.922.82 crores).

The loss before tax was Rs.18204.43 crores mainly due to sub-optimum level of manufacturing operations,
lower profitability, provision for doubtful debts and advances, higher interest burden and depreciation.

The Company was facing a financial crunch since early 2014, which led to the initiation of the corporate insolvency
resolution process. The Company also took a conscious call to cease its trading business which further resulted
in reduction in revenues.

A detailed analysis of financial results is given in the “Management Discussion and Analysis Report”, which
forms part of this Report.

DIVIDEND:
There is no recommendation of dividend.
TRANSFER TO RESERVES:

In view of the losses, for the year under review, your Company has not transferred any amount to General
Reserves.

SHARE CAPITAL:

The paid up Equity Share Capital as on 31 March, 2017 was Rs.13,773,178,950 comprising of 1,377,317,895
Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each. During the year under review, the Company has not issued any further shares to
the members or general public.

EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION SCHEME (ESOS):

During the year under review, the Company has not granted any stock options and hence the details of the
shares issued under Employee Stock Option Scheme (ESOS) and also the disclosures in compliance with Section
62 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12 of Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 and the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014 do not form part
of this report. The earlier options granted to the employees lapsed during the financial year 2016-17 and the
necessary disclosures had been provided in the Annual Report as at 31.03.2017. All the options granted to the
employees of the Company in the past have been exercised or lapsed and there are no options outstanding as
on date that can be exercised in the future.

FINANCE AND ACCOUNTS:

During the year under review, the Company availed an interim finance of Rs.150.00 crores, in terms of the Code,
after commencement of the CIR process and a short term loan of Rs. 20.00 crores, prior to commencement of
the CIR process for working capital. Out of the said loans the Company has repaid Rs.50.00 crores of interim
finance, in line with the terms and conditions of the loan, as on 31.03.2018.

As mandated by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the Financial Statements for the year ended 31.03.2018 has
been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (IND AS) notified under Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. The estimates and judgments relating
to the Financial Statements are made on a prudent basis, so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
and profits and cash flows of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2018.

DEPOSITS

During the year under review, the Company has not accepted any deposit or renewed any Deposit within the
meaning of Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186 OF THE COMPANIES ACT,
2013:

Details of Loans, Guarantees and Investments covered under the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies
Act, 2013 are given in the Notes to the Financial Statements.
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11.
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14.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company are prepared in accordance with the relevant Indian
Accounting Standards issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and forms an integral part of this
Report.

Pursuant to Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014, a statement containing salient features of the financial statements of Subsidiaries/Associate Companies/
Joint Ventures is given in Form AOC-1 and forms an integral part of this Report.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

The Company has constituted a Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee in accordance with the Section
135 of the Companies Act, 2013, comprising of 3 Directors including an Independent Director. Since the powers
of the Board are suspended, the CSR Committee has not met during this period.

For the current financial year 2017-18, as the average profits for the last three years is negative, the Company
does not have to spend any amount on CSR.

Financial year Net profit/loss (Rupees in crores)
2015-2016 (4205.95)
2016-2017 (3502.49)
2017-2018 (18206.82)

Average profit/loss of last three financial year: (8638.42) crores

Further, due to paucity of funds, the company has also not been able to spend the amount required to be spent
in FY 16-17 and FY 17-18 on CSR activities based on the results of the company for FY 2014-15.

The Company’s Policy on Corporate Social Responsibility has formally been put in place in the year 2014-15 and
the Policy can be reached at our website www.alokind.com

HUMAN RESOURCES AND INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

During the year, employee relations at all the Units remained cordial. This motivated work force has helped
your Company to move along in spite of adversities. Most of the workforce at the plants and offices and senior
management team, to their credit, has remained with the company in these trying times.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board of the Company has formed a risk management committee to frame, implement and monitor the
risk management plan for the Company. The committee is responsible for reviewing the risk management plan
and ensuring its effectiveness. The audit committee has additional oversight in the area of financial risks and
controls. Major risks identified by the businesses and functions are systematically addressed through mitigating
actions on a continuing basis. The development and implementation of risk management policy has been
covered in the management discussion and analysis, which forms part of this report.

Pursuant to commencement of the CIR Process, the powers of the board of directors stand suspended and are
exercised by the interim resolution professional or resolution professional, as the case may be, in accordance
with the provisions of the Code. Accordingly, the Risk Management Committee as well as the Audit Committee
has not met after 18 July 2017.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND THEIR ADEQUACY:

The Company has an Internal Control System, commensurate with the size, scale and complexity of its operations.
The scope and authority of the Internal Audit function is defined in the Internal Audit Charter. To maintain
its objectivity and independence, the Internal Audit function reports to the Audit Committee. During the CIR
process, the Chief Financial Officer (“CFO”) has been mandated by the Resolution Professional to evaluate
the Internal Audit reports and ensure corrective actions. The Internal Audit is outsourced to external firms of
Chartered Accountants and they evaluate the efficacy and adequacy of internal control system in the Company,
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15.

16.

its compliance with operating systems, accounting procedures and policies at all locations of the Company.
Based on the report of internal audit function, process owners undertake corrective action in their respective
areas and thereby strengthen the controls. The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and other matters.

VIGIL MECHANISM/ WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY:

The Company has a Whistle Blower Policy to report genuine concerns or grievances for redressal. The Whistle
Blower Policy has been posted on the website of the Company viz, www.alokind.com. Your Company hereby
affirms that no Director/ employee has been denied access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee until 18 July
2017 and to the Resolution Professional thereafter and that no complaints were received during the year.

SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
As on 31.03.2018, the Company had 9 subsidiaries (direct or step down), and was joint venture partner in
two companies as under. Further Alok Infrastructure Limited divested its entire stake in its two joint ventures
Ashford Infotech Private Limited and Alspun Infrastructure Limited during the year.

Subsidiaries of Alok Industries Limited

1.  Alok Infrastructure Limited

2 Alok International Inc. (incorporated in the state of New York, USA)

3 Alok International (Middle East) FZE (incorporated in Dubai)

4.  Alok Singapore PTE Limited (incorporated in Singapore)

5 Alok Worldwide Limited (incorporated in the British Virgin islands)

Step-down subsidiaries of Alok Industries Limited

1.  Alok Industries International Limited (incorporated in the British Virgin Islands)

2. Grabal Alok International Limited (incorporated in the British Virgin Islands)

3. Grabal Alok (UK) Limited (incorporated in UK) (under liquidation w.e.f. 10" July, 2017)
4, Mileta, a.s.(incorporated in the Czech Republic)

Joint Ventures
1. New City of Bombay Manufacturing Mills Limited
2. Aurangabad Textiles and Apparel Parks Limited

Associates

Nil

During the year under review, one subsidiary company, Alok Global Trading (Middle East) FZE was voluntarily
liquidated.

Alok Infrastructure Limited divested its entire stake in the equity and preference capital of two joint venture
companies, namely, Ashford Infotech Private Limited and Alspun Infrastructure Limited during the financial year
ending 31 March 2018.

Alok Infrastructure Limited has been admitted under the Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process in terms of
the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code 2016 on 24 October 2018.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014, a statement containing salient features of financial statements of subsidiaries, associates and
joint venture companies in Form AOC- 1 is attached to the Financial Statements. The separate audited financial
statements in respect of each of the subsidiary shall be kept open for inspection at the Registered Office of
the Company. The Company will also make available these documents upon request by any Member of the
Company interested in obtaining the same. The separate audited financial statements in respect of each of the
subsidiary are also available on the website of the Company at www.alokind.com.
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The Company has framed a policy for determining material subsidiaries, which has been uploaded on company’s
website at www.alokind.com. In terms of the policy, none of the subsidiaries of the company was determined
to be a material subsidiary by the Board of Directors in the previous years.

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANGERIAL PERSONNEL:

118

Appointments

During the year IFCI Limited nominated Mr. Suneet Shukla as the Nominee Director on the Board of the
Company effective from 15% May, 2017 in place of Mr. Sachikanta Mishra.

Resignations

During the year, the Nomination of Mr. Sachikanta Mishra on the Board of the Company was withdrawn
by IFCI Limited effective from 15" May, 2017. Further, IDBI Bank Limited withdrew nomination of Mr. Rajiv
Kumar on the Board of the Company effective from 5" August, 2017.

Further, Mrs. Thankom Mathew, Independent Woman Director, citing other commitments, stepped down
as the Director of the Company, effective from 15t December, 2017.

LIC of India has also withdrawn their nomination of Mr. Pradeep Kumar Rath on the Board of the Company
effective from 9t May, 2018. Further, Mr. Atanu Sen nominated by State Bank of India on the Board of the
Company has also tendered his resignation effective from 4% July, 2018.

Directors Retiring by Rotation

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Surendra B. Jiwrajka, Mr.
Tulsi Tejwani and Mr. Senthilkumar M.A. will retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting
of the Company and being eligible, have offered themselves for re-appointment. In accordance with the
provisions of the Act, none of the Independent Directors are liable to retire by rotation.

Key Managerial Personnel

The following are the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company during the financial year under review:
(1) Mr. Ashok B Jiwrajka - Executive Director & CE (Home Textiles),

(2)  Mr. Dilip B. Jiwrajka - Managing Director & CE (Apparel Fabrics),

(3) Mr. Surendra B. Jiwrajka - Joint Managing Director & CE (Polyester),

(4)  Mr. Senthilkumar M. A. - Executive Director & CEO (Processing),
(5)  Mr. Tulsi Tejwani - Executive Director & CEO (Weaving)
(6)  Mr. Sunil 0. Khandelwal - Chief Financial Officer,
(7) Mr. K.H. Gopal - Company Secretary.

There is no change in the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company during the year under review.

NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

As stated above, as the powers of the Board of Directors stood suspended post 18 July 2017, the Board met
only once during the year under review and the details of which are given in the Corporate Governance Report
forming part of this Annual Report. During the financial year ended 31 March, 2018, one Board Meeting was
held on 30 May, 2017. The attendance of each of the Director was as under:

Sr. | Names of the Directors who attended
No

1. Mr. Surinder Kumar Bhoan

2. Mr. Keshav D. Hodavdekar

3. Mr. Ashok B. Jiwrajka

4, Mr. Dilip B. Jiwrajka

5. Mr. Senthilkumar M. A.
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20.

21.

22.

23.

Sr. | Names of the Directors who attended
No
6. Mr. Tulsi Tejwani

7. Mr. Suneet Shukla

8. Mr. Atanu Sen

9. Mr. Pradeep Kumar Rath

10. | Mr. Rajeev Kumar

Names of the Directors who were granted Leave of Absence
1. Mr. Surendra B. Jiwrajka

2. Mrs. Thankom T. Mathew

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD:

The Board of Directors has the following Committees:
1) Audit Committee;

2) Remuneration and Nomination Committee;

3) Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee;

(
(
(
(4)  Corporate Social Responsibility Committee.

The details of the Committees along with their composition, number of meetings held and attendance at the
meetings are provided in the Corporate Governance Report.

DIRECTORS’ EVALUATION:

In terms of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Third Amendment) Regulations, 2018, a
company undergoing CIR process is not required to comply with the requirement of conducting evaluation of
the independent directors. Therefore, subsequent to commencement of the CIR process the evaluation of the
independent directors of the Company was not required to be carried out under the provisions of the Regulation
17(10) SEBI LODR Regulations. Further, in accordance with Rule 8(4) of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, the
board of directors of a company are required to evaluate its own performance and that of its committees and
individual directors. However pursuant to commencement of the CIR process of the Company, the powers of the
board of directors stand suspended and are exercised by the interim resolution professional or the resolution
professional, as the case may be, in accordance with the provisions of the Code.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The Board on the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee framed a policy for selection
and appointment of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management and their remuneration. The
Remuneration Policy is explained in the Corporate Governance Report and is also available on the Company’s
website at www.alokind.com.

FAMILIARIZATION PROGRAMME FOR THE INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR(S):

In compliance with the requirements of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015, the Company has put in place a familiarization program for the Independent Directors to familiarize them
with their role, rights and Responsibilities as Directors, the working of the Company, nature of the industry in
which the Company operates, business model etc. The details of the familiarization program are explained in
the Corporate Governance Report and are also available on the Company’s website at www.alokind.com.

DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The Company has received declarations from all the Independent Directors of the Company confirming that
they meet the criteria of independence as prescribed under the provisions of Section 149(6) of the Companies
Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.
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24.

MANAGEMENT OPINION ON THE QUALIFICATIONS/EMPHASIS OF MATTERS/NOTES GIVEN BY AUDITORS:
Auditors’ Qualification:

As per Ind AS 36 on Impairments of assets, the Holding Company is required to determine impairment in respect
of fixed assets as per the methodology prescribed under the said Standard. However the Management of the
Holding Company has not done impairment testing for the reasons explained in note no. 7 of the Financial
Results. In the absence of any working for impairment of the fixed assets as per Ind AS 36, the impact of
impairment, if any, on the Consolidated Financial Results is not ascertainable.

Management opinion:

The Company’s current level of operations, at about 30% of the capacity, may not be an indication of the
future performance of the Company. A Resolution Plan for revival of the Company is under consideration of
the Adjudicating Authority. Therefore, until a resolution plan has been implemented, reliable projections of
availability of future cash flows of the Company supporting the carrying value of Property, Plant and Equipment
cannot be determined, hence are not available. Accordingly Impairment testing under Ind AS has not been
performed while presenting these results.

Auditors’ Qualification:

As mentioned in note no. 4 of the Financial Results, the Holding Company continued to recognize deferred tax
assets upto March 31, 2017, Rs. 1423.11 crore. Considering the pending NCLT approval for resolution plan and
absence of probable certainty and convincing evidence for taxable income in future, as required by the Ind AS —
12, we are unable to ascertain the extent to which these deferred tax assets can be utilized.

Management opinion:

The net deferred tax assets as on 31 March 2018 are Rs. 1423.11 crores (Previous Year Rs. 1423.11 crores). The
Resolution Plan for the Company is under consideration of the Adjudicating Authority. Reliable projections of
future taxable income, therefore, shall be available only when the Resolution Plan is implemented. Accordingly,
deferred tax assets for the current period and the Financial Year are presently not recognised and the net
deferred tax assets as at the end of the previous financial year have been carried forward. Since the company
has continued to operate as a going concern in terms of the Code and expects that a resolution plan will be
eventually admitted, based on the past normal level of operations of the company, the company expects that
post implementation of the resolution plan, sufficient taxable income will be available for availing the deferred
tax benefit.

Auditors’ Qualification:

The Consolidated Financial Results include the Unaudited Financial Results of two subsidiaries whose Ind
AS Financial Statements reflect total assets of Rs. 380.37 crores as at 315t March, 2018, total revenue of Rs.
182.10 crores, net cash outflows amounting to Rs. 0.57 crores, net loss after tax of Rs. 464.61 Crores, and
total comprehensive loss amounting to Rs. 464.61 crores for the year ended on that date, as considered in
the Ind AS Consolidated Financial Statements. Our opinion, in so far as it relates to the amounts included in
respect of these subsidiaries, is based solely on such Unaudited Ind AS Financial Statements. We are not in a
position to comment on the consequential impact, if any, arising out of subsequent audit of these entities, on
the Consolidated Financial Results. Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Results is modified in respect of
our reliance on the Ind AS financial statements/ financial information certified by the Management. The audit
report on the Ind AS Consolidated Financial Results for the period ended 31 March, 2017 was also qualified in
respect of this matter.

Management opinion:

The two subsidiaries Alok International Inc. (parent company, Alok Industries Limited) and Mileta a.s. (parent
company, Alok Infrastructure Limited) are incorporated in the United States of America (US) and the Czech
Republic (Czech) respectively. The US subsidiary has not carried out any activity during the year 2017-18 under
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review. Since this company is effectively a defunct company, management is of the view that the audited financial
statements of this step-down subsidiary will not materially differ from the unaudited versions and hence may be
relied upon. The Czech step-down subsidiary, an integrated textile company, while being operational and profit
making too, is not a material subsidiary. For the year under review, the Czech subsidiary had a resource crunch
causing a delay beyond August 2018 for finalization of its accounts, which is permissible, being an unlisted
entity. The management had to therefore consider the unaudited numbers for the purpose of consolidation.
Since the Czech company is not a material subsidiary, the management is of the opinion that the unaudited
financial statements of the Czech step-down subsidiary may also be relied upon.

Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern

As mentioned in note no. 34 of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, the Company incurred a total
comprehensive loss of Rs. 18,206.82 crores during the year ended March 31, 2018 and, as of that date, the
Company’s current liabilities exceeded its total assets by Rs. 15,200.53 crores. As stated in note no. 32 of the
standalone Ind AS financial statements, these events or conditions, along with other matters as set forth in note
no. 33 of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. Our opinion is not modified in respect
of this matter.

Management opinion

Members are requested to refer to the opening paragraphs and the section on Revival Plan of the company in
this regard.

Emphasis of Matters
[Also refer point (x) of ANNEXURE TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT]

On the basis of the facts mentioned in note no. 35 of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, we are unable
to comment on the possible impact on standalone Ind AS financial statements, related disclosures and our
reporting thereon, if any, regarding the said transactions until the final conclusion of the matter. Our opinion is
not modified in respect of this matter.

Management opinion

Attention of members is invited to note no. 35 of the Notes to Accounts of the standalone Ind AS financial
statements where details have been provided. The decision of the Adjudicating Authority is awaited.

Point (iv) - ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

In our opinion and according to information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied with
provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Act in respect of loans, investments, guarantees and securities except
for the following non-compliances:

(a) The company has not taken prior approval from public financial institutions before giving loans to the
subsidiaries during the year, as required under sub-section 5 of Section 186.

(b) The company has not charged any interest on the loan given to the subsidiaries during the year ended
March 31, 2018, sub-section 7 of Section 186.

Management opinion

The amounts extended by the Company to Alok Infrastructure Limited, its wholly owned subsidiary, were largely
to meet its critical running expenses. Further, substantial portion of the assets of Alok Infrastructure Limited
have been collatarized to secure the loans availed by the Company and therefore Alok Infrastructure was not
in a position to monetize some of its assets to meet its running expenses. Besides, the Company though had
leased the premises of Alok Infrastructure Limited for its corporate office but due to severe cash shortage
the companies agreed that Alok Infrastructure will not charge lease rent. Accordingly, in the opinion of the
management, the waiver of the lease rental more than offsets the interest that the company would have
received on the loans granted during the year.
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25.

26.

Basis of Qualified Opinion

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our audit, the following material
weakness has been identified as at March 31, 2018:

1. On the basis of the facts mentioned in note no. 35 of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, we are
unable to comment on the possible impact on standalone Ind AS financial statements, related disclosures
and our reporting thereon, if any, regarding the said transactions until the final conclusion of the matter.

2.  The Company’s internal financial controls over obtaining certain bank balance confirmations were not
operating effectively, which could potentially result in affecting the expenses such as interest, bank
charges etc. and bank balances in the books of the Company.

A ‘material weakness’ is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal financial control over financial
reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the company’s annual or
interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis.

Management opinion

1. Attention of members is invited to note no. 35 of the Notes to Accounts of the standalone Ind AS financial
statements where details have been provided. The decision of the Adjudicating Authority is awaited.

2. Since the company is under CIR process, all its major accounts are under the Trust and Retention
arrangements which are directly under the control of the banks. Very few bank accounts have any
transactions and in some of these, there has been difficulty in obtaining bank balance confirmations for
all the months during the year. Further the company is accruing interest based on the claims filed by the
Banks and admitted by the Resolution Professional under the CIR process. Accordingly, in the opinion of
the management, non-availability of some of the bank statements / balance confirmations from Banks has
no material impact on the financial statements of the company.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT / Statement by the Chief Financial Officer (CFO) and taken on record
by the Resolution Professional.

To the best of knowledge and beliefs and according to the information and explanations obtained by the CFO of
the Company, the CFO makes the following statement in terms of Section 134(3)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013:

(a) that in the preparation of the Annual Accounts for the year ended 31 March, 2018, the applicable
accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanations relating to material departures,
if any;

(b) the CFO had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company as at 315t March, 2018 and of the profit /loss of the Company for the year ended on that date;

(c) that the CFO has taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(d) the annual accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis in terms of the code;

(e) that the CFO had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such
internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively; and

(f)  that the CFO had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws
and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:

All transactions, as certified by the CFO of the Company, entered with Related Parties for the year under review
until 18 July 2017 were on arm’s length basis and in the ordinary course of business and are in compliance
with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder and the SEBI
LODR Regulations. There are no materially significant related party transactions made by the Company with
Promoters, Directors or Key Managerial Personnel etc. which may have potential conflict with the interest of
the Company at large or which warrants the approval of the shareholders. Post 18™ July 2017, in terms of the
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27.

28.

provisions of the Code, the nature of the related party transactions was approved by the CoC and the CFO and
the Chief Compliance Officer of the company have confirmed to the Resolution Professional that only approved
transactions have been entered into post the admission under CIR Process. Accordingly, since disclosure in
form AOC- 2 is required to be made only of the related party transactions or arrangements that were not at
arm’s length basis or the material related party transactions that were at arm’s length basis in accordance
with the Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013, the disclosure in form AOC-2 in terms of Section 134 of the
Companies Act, 2013 is not required. Further, the details of the transactions with Related Party are provided in
the Company’s financial statements in accordance with the Accounting Standards.

All Related Party Transactions prior to the commencement of the CIR Process were authorized by the Audit
Committee/ Board, as applicable for approval and thereafter by the Resolution Professional who in turn, was
authorized by the CoC.

The policy on Related Party Transactions as approved by the Board of Directors has been uploaded on the website
of the Company viz. www.alokind.com. None of the Directors has any pecuniary relationship or transactions vis-
a-vis the Company except remuneration and sitting fees.

SIGNIFICANT OR MATERIAL ORDERS THAT WERE PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR TRIBUNALS:

(a) Pursuant to an application made by State Bank of India, the Adjudicating Authority vide its order dated
18 July, 2017, initiated CIR process of the Company in accordance with the provisions of the Code. The
Adjudicating Authority appointed Mr. Ajay Joshi as the Interim Resolution Professional (IRP) for the CIR
process who was later confirmed as Resolution Professional by the Committee of Creditors on 16 August,
2017. In terms of Section 23 of the Code read with Section 25 of the Code, the powers of the Board of
Directors stand suspended and the management of the affairs of the Company vests in the Resolution
Professional (RP) of the Company i.e. Mr. Ajay Joshi. .

(b)  Pursuant to the Order of the Adjudicating Authority and in light of the Ordinance dated 6 June 2018,
meetings of the CoC were convened by the RP on 18 June 2018 and 20 June, 2018, the CoC approved the
Resolution Plan with the requisite assenting majority votes (72.192%) and the RP filed an application with
the Adjudicating Authority for approval of the Resolution Plan.

(c) The Resolution Plan is pending adjudication before the Hon’ble NCLT.

(d)  Further, afinancial creditor of the Company, has filed an application before the Hon’ble National Company
Law Appellate Tribunal, Delhi, challenging the Order under which the Resolution Plan was re-voted by the
CoC and was approved with the requisite majority of assenting votes. The aforesaid application is reserved
for order by the Hon’ble National Company Law Appellate Tribunal, Delhi.

AUDITORS:
A. STATUTORY AUDITORS

M/s NBS & Co., Chartered Accountants, Mumbai (Firm Registration No. 110100W) and M/s Shah Gupta
& Co, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No.109574W) were appointed as the Joint Statutory
Auditors of the Company at the Annual General Meeting held on 24t September, 2016 for a term of 5
consecutive years. The Auditors have confirmed that they are not disqualified from continuing as Auditors
of the Company.

The Report given by the Auditors on the Financial Statement of the Company is part of this Annual Report.
B.  COST AUDIT / COST AUDITORS

As per the requirement of Central Government and pursuant to Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013
read with the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014 as amended from time to time, the Company
is required to maintain Cost Records and is also required to have the Cost Records audited every year.

M/s. B.J.D. Nanabhoy & Co, Cost Accountants, Mumbai (Reg No. FRN-000011) carried out the cost audit
for applicable business during the year. Section 148 of The Companies Act 2013 read with Rule 6 of the
Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014 requires that the appointment of the Cost Auditor to
be made within 180 days of the commencement of every Financial Year and accordingly, the Resolution
Professional has appointed them as Cost Auditors for the financial year 2018-19.
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30.

31.

32.

33.

The remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors is required to be placed before the Members in a general
meeting for their ratification. Accordingly, a Resolution seeking Members’ ratification of the remuneration
payable to M/s. B.J.D. Nanabhoy & Co, Cost Auditors is included in the Notice convening the Annual
General Meeting.

C.  SECRETARIAL AUDITOR

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and The Companies (Appointment
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company has appointed Mr. Virendra G
Bhatt, a Practicing Company Secretary, to conduct the Secretarial Audit of the Company for the financial
year 2017-18. The Secretarial Audit Report in MR-3 is annexed as Annexure 5 and forms an integral
part of this Report. The remarks contained in the Secretarial Audit report have been discussed in the
Managements Opinion on the Emphasis of matters/ notes given by auditors section which forms part of
this report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS:

The Corporate Governance Report and Management Discussion & Analysis, which form part of this Report,
are set out as separate Annexures together with the Certificate from the auditors of the Company regarding
compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in Schedule V of Regulation 34(3) of the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

The information pertaining to conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings
and outgo, as required under Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 8 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014, is annexed as Annexure 2 and forms an integral part of this Report.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN:

The details forming part of the extract of the Annual Return in Form MGT-9 is annexed as Annexure 1 and forms
an integral part of this Report.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES:

Disclosures relating to remuneration and other details as required under Section 197(12) of the Companies Act,
2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules,
2014 are annexed as Annexure 4.

The information required pursuant to Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(2) and
5(3) of The Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 in respect of
employees of the Company, will be provided upon request.

In terms of Section 136(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Report and Accounts are being sent to the Members
and others entitled thereto, excluding the information on employees’ particulars which is available for inspection
by the Members at the Registered Office of the Company during business hours on working days of the Company
up to the date of the ensuing Annual General Meeting. If any Member is interested in obtaining a copy thereof,
such Member may write to the Company Secretary in this regard.

Except, Mr. Ashok Jiwrajka, Mr. Dilip Jiwrajka and Mr. Surendra Jiwrajka and their sons, Mr. Alok Jiwrajka,
Mr. Varun Jiwrajka and Mr. Niraj Jiwrajka respectively, who are related to each other, none of the employees
listed in the said Annexure is a relative of any Director of the Company. Further, during the financial year under
review, Mr. Ashok Jiwrajka, Mr. Dilip Jiwrajka and Mr. Surendra Jiwrajka each held (by himself or along with his
spouse and dependent children) more than two percent of the equity shares of the Company.

ENVIRONMENT:

The Company is conscious of the importance of environmentally clean and safe operations. The Company’s
policy requires conduct of operations in such a manner so as to ensure safety of all concerned, compliances of
environmental regulations and preservation of natural resources.
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34.

35.

36.

37.

DISCLOSURE AS PER SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION &
REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013:

The Company has zero tolerance for sexual harassment at workplace and has formulated and implemented a
policy on prevention of sexual harassment at the workplace with a mechanism of lodging complaints in line with
the provisions of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013
and the rules framed thereunder.

The Company’s Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) is formed and its details are declared across the
organizations. All ICC members are trained by subject experts on handling the investigations and proceedings as
defined in the policy. During the year under review, no complaints were reported to the ICC.

GENERAL

No disclosure or reporting is required in respect of the following items as there were no transactions on these
items during the year under review:

1. Details relating to acceptance of deposits covered under Chapter V of the Act.
2. Issue of equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise.

3. Issue of shares (including sweat equity shares) to employees of the Company under any scheme save and
except Employees’ Stock Option Scheme referred to in this Report.

4. The Company does not have any scheme of provision of money for the purchase of its own shares by
employees or by trustees for the benefit of employees.

5. Neither the Managing Director nor the Whole-time Directors of the Company received any remuneration
or commission from any of its subsidiaries.

6. No fraud has been reported by the Auditors to the Audit Committee or the Board or the Resolution
Professional.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

Statements in this Directors’ Report and Management Discussion and Analysis describing the Company’s
objectives, projections, estimates, expectations or predictions may be “forward-looking statements” within the
meaning of applicable securities laws and regulations.

Actual results could differ materially from those expressed or implied. Important factors that could make
difference to the Company’s operations include raw material availability and its prices, cyclical demand and
pricing in the Company’s principal markets, changes in Government regulations, Tax regimes, economic
developments within India and the countries in which the Company conducts business and other ancillary
factors.
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The Board / Resolution Professional together with the Key Managerial Persons expresses their sincere thanks
to all the employees, customers, suppliers, investors, lenders, regulatory and government authorities and stock
exchanges for their cooperation and support and look forward to their continued support in future.

Sunil 0. Khandelwal K. H. Gopal
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Taken on record
Ajay Joshi

Mumbai, 28" November, 2018 Resolution Professional
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ANNEXURE TO DIRECTOR’S REPORT

Annexure-1
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN AS ON 31t MARCH, 2018.
FORM MGT-9

[Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014]

In accordance with Section 134(3)(a), the web link to access the Annual Return of the Company is:

http://www.alokind.com/Downloads/Annual%20Return%202016-17.pdf

. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

CIN

L17100DN1986PLC0O00334

Registration Date

12t March, 1986

Name of the Company

Alok Industries limited

iv.

Category/sub-category of the

Company

Public Company/ Company limited by shares

Address of the Registered office

and Contact details

Dadra & Nagar Haveli

Tel: 0260-6637000; Fax: 0260-2645289

17/5/1, 521/1, Village Rakholi/Saily, Silvassa, Union Territory Of

Vi.

Whether listed company

Yes

Vii.

Name, Address

Agent, if any

and Contact
details of Registrar and Transfer

Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd

Mumbai - 400083.

Tel: 022-49186000; Fax: 022-49186060

C-101, 247 Park, L. B. S. Marg, Vikhroli (West),

Il.  PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the Company shall be stated:

Sr. | Name and Description of main products/ | NIC Code of the Product/ | % to total turnover of the

No. | services service Company

1. Manufacturing of Textile, leather and other 260 100
apparel products

Ill.  PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
Sr. | Name of the Company CIN/GLN Subsidiary/ % of Applicable
No. Associate/ Joint | shares section
Venture held

1 Alok Infrastructure Limited U45201MH2006PLC164267 | Subsidiary 100 2(87)

2 Alok Singapore Pte Limited NA Subsidiary 100 2(87)

3 Alok International Inc NA Subsidiary 100 2(87)

4 Alok Worldwide Limited NA Subsidiary 100 2(87)

5 Alok International (Middle NA Subsidiary 100 2(87)
East) FZE

6 New City of Bombay U17291MH2007G0I1195493 | Joint Venture 49 -
Manufacturing Mills Limited

7 Aurangabad Textiles and U17121MH2007G0I195403 | Joint Venture 49 --
Apparel Parks Limited
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Shareholding of Promoters

Sr. | Shareholder’s Shareholding at the beginning of the year Shareholding at the end of the year % change
No | Name in share
(As on 31-03-2017) (as on 31-03-2018) holc!ing
No. of % of total | %of Shares No. of % of total | %of Shares t::":gr
Shares Shares Pledged / Shares Shares Pledged / ¥
of the encumbered of the encumbe
company to total company | red to total
shares shares
1 Ashok B Jiwrajka 31,316,473 2.274 100.00 31,316,473 2.274 100.00 -
2 Dilip B Jiwrajka 32,070,471 2.328 74.35 32,070,471 2.328 99.99 -
3 Surendra B 35,121,035 2.55 100.00 35,121,035 2.55 100.00 -
Jiwrajka
4 Chandrakala A 2,561 0.00 0.00 2,561 0.00 0.00 -
Jiwrajka
5 Pramila D Jiwrajka 2,061,605 0.15 99.90 2,061,605 0.15 99.90 -
6 Vinod livrajka 1,163,633 0.084 0.00 - - - (0.09)
7 Alok A Jiwrajka 4,166 0.00 0.00 4,166 0.00 0.00 -
8 Surendra B 8,691,000 0.631 100.00 8,691,000 0.631 100.00 -
Jiwrajka, Jt. with
K. H. Gopal*
9 Ashok Realtors 639,320 0.046 100.00 639,320 0.046 100.00 -
Private Ltd
10 | Alok Knit Exports 288,820,048 20.97 99.98 | 286,998,681 20.83 100.00 (0.14)
Private Limited
Total 399,890,312 29.034 97.64 | 396,905,312 28.81 100.00 (0.22)

* Trustees on behalf of Alok Benefit Trust
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Change in Promoters Shareholding

Sr.

no.

Shareholder’s Name

Shareholding at the beginning

of the year

01.04.2017)

Cumulative Shareholding
during the year

No. of shares

% of total
shares of the
company

No. of shares

% of total
shares of the
company

Ashok B Jiwrajka

At the beginning of the year

31,316,473

2.27

31,316,473

2.27

Date wise Increase / Decrease in Promoters
Share holding during the year specifying
the reasons for increase/ decrease (e.g.
allotment / transfer / bonus/ sweat equity
etc):

At the End of the year

31,316,473

2.27

31,316,473

2.27

Dilip B Jiwrajka

At the beginning of the year

32,070,471

2.33

32,070,471

2.33

Date wise Increase / Decrease in Promoters
Share holding during the year specifying
the reasons for increase/ decrease (e.g.
allotment / transfer / bonus/ sweat equity
etc):

At the End of the year

32,070,471

2.33

32,070,471

2.33

Surendra B Jiwrajka

At the beginning of the year

35,121,035

2.55

35,121,035

2.55

Date wise Increase / Decrease in Promoters
Share holding during the year specifying
the reasons for increase/ decrease (e.g.
allotment / transfer / bonus/ sweat equity
etc):

At the End of the year

35,121,035

2.55

35,121,035

2.55

Chandrakala A Jiwrajka

At the beginning of the year

2,561

0.00

2,561

0.00

Date wise Increase / Decrease in Promoters
Share holding during the year specifying
the reasons for increase/ decrease (e.g.
allotment / transfer / bonus/ sweat equity
etc):

At the End of the year

2,561

0.00

2,561

0.00

Pramila D Jiwrajka

At the beginning of the year

2,061,605

0.15

2,061,605

0.15

Date wise Increase / Decrease in Promoters
Share holding during the year specifying
the reasons for increase/ decrease (e.g.
allotment / transfer / bonus/ sweat equity
etc):

At the End of the year

2,061,605

0.15

2,061,605

0.15

Vinod Jivrajka

At the beginning of the year

1,163,633

0.08

1,163,633

0.08

Date wise Increase / Decrease in Promoters
Share holding during the year specifying
the reasons for increase/ decrease (e.g.
allotment / transfer / bonus/ sweat equity
etc):

*1,163,633

At the End of the year

*
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Sr.

no.

Shareholder’s Name

Shareholding at the beginning

of the year

01.04.2017)

Cumulative Shareholding
during the year

No. of shares

% of total
shares of the
company

No. of shares

% of total
shares of the
company

Alok A Jiwrajka

At the beginning of the year

4,166

0.00

4,166

0.00

Date wise Increase / Decrease in Promoters
Share holding during the year specifying
the reasons for increase/ decrease (e.g.
allotment / transfer / bonus/ sweat equity
etc):

At the End of the year

4,166

0.00

4,166

0.00

Surendra B Jiwrajka, Jt. with K. H. Gopal*

At the beginning of the year

8,691,000

0.63

8,691,000

0.63

Date wise Increase / Decrease in Promoters
Share holding during the year specifying
the reasons for increase/ decrease (e.g.
allotment / transfer / bonus/ sweat equity
etc):

At the End of the year

8,691,000

0.63

8,691,000

0.63

Ashok Realtors Private Limited

At the beginning of the year

639,320

0.04

639,320

0.04

Date wise Increase / Decrease in Promoters
Share holding during the year specifying
the reasons for increase/ decrease (e.g.
allotment / transfer / bonus/ sweat equity
etc):

At the End of the year

639,320

0.04

6,39,230

0.04

10

Alok Knit Exports Private Limited

At the beginning of the year

288,820,048

20.97

288,820,048

20.97

Date wise Increase / Decrease in Promoters
Shareholding during the year specifying
the reasons for increase/ decrease (e.g.
allotment / transfer / bonus/ sweat equity
etc):

©30,00,000
1,163,633
$15,000

At the End of the year

286,998,681

20.83

286,998,681

20.83

Shares invoked by Sunidhi Capital Private Ltd on 19.06.2017

@
#  Shares were bought from Mr. Vinod Jivrajka on 16.01.2018
S

Shares were bought from Mr. Santosh B. Jiwrajka on 20.02.2018

*  Trustees on behalf of Alok Benefit Trust
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iv. Shareholding Pattern of Top Ten Shareholders (other than Directors and Promoters)

Sr. | Name of the top 10 shareholders Shareholding at the beginning Cumulative shareholding
No. of the year (01.04.2017) during the year (31.03.2018)
No of shares % of total No of shares % of total
shares of the shares of the
Company Company
1 Life Insurance Corporation of India 3,51,64,136 2.55 3,51,64,136 2.55
2 IFCI Limited 1,87,60,723 1.36 1,87,60,723 1.36
3 IDBI Bank Limited 1,68,88,161 1.23 1,64,88,161 1.19
4 Manjeet Cotton Private Limited 1,00,00,000 0.72 1,07,11,700 0.77
5 Jaideep Narendra Sampat 81,00,000 0.59 81,00,000 0.59
6 United India Insurance Company Limited 76,10,690 0.55 76,10,690 0.55
7 R K R Investments Services Private Limited 55,50,000 0.40 61,50,000 0.44
8 Harjindersingh Jaswantsingh Sarna 19,00,000 0.13 60,00,000 0.43
9 Dhwaja Commodity Services Private Limited 0 0.00 57,00,000 0.41
10 | General Insurance Corporation of India 53,00,000 0.38 53,00,000 0.38
v. Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel
Sr. | Name Shareholding at the beginning Cumulative shareholding
No. of the year during the year
For each of the directors and KMP No of shares % of total No of shares % of total
shares of the shares of the
Company Company
1. | Ashok B Jiwrajka 31,316,473 2.27 31,316,473 2.27
2. | Dilip B Jiwrajka 32,070,471 2.33 32,070,471 2.33
3. Surendra B Jiwrajka 35,121,035 2.55 35,121,035 2.55
4. | Sunil O Khandelwal 2000 0.00 2000 0.00
5. K. H. Gopal 0 0 0 0
6. | Tulsi Tejwani 4000 0 4000 0.00
7. | Senthilkumar M A 0 0 0 0
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V. INDEBTEDNESS
Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment
(Rs. in Crore)
Particulars Secured Loans Unsecured Total
excluding deposits Loans Indebtedness
Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year
(01.04.2017)
i) Principal Amount 23648.88 491.39 24140.27
ii) Interest due but not paid 3521.41 36.60 3558.01
iii) Interest accrued but not due 4.04 0.01 4.05
Total (i+ii+iii) 27174.33 528.00 27702.33
Change in Indebtedness during the financial year
(2017-18)
Net Change 4587.60 165.61 4753.21
Indebtedness at the end of the Financial year
(31.03.2018)
i) Principal Amount 25574.08 646.57 26220.65
i) Interest due but not paid 6177.78 47.04 6224.82
i) Interest accrued but not due 10.07 0.00 10.07
Total (i+ii+iii) 31761.93 693.61 32455.54
Vi REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager
Sr. | Particulars of Name Total
No. | Remuneration Executive | Managing Joint Executive | Executive | Amount
Director Director Managing Director* Director*
Director
Ashok B Dilip B Surendra B Senthil Tulsi
Jiwrajka Jiwrajka Jiwrajka KumarMA | Tejwani
1. Gross salary
(a) Salary as per provisions | 14475806 | 14475806 14475806 7720092 6803652 | 57951162
contained in section17(1)
of the Income-tax Act,1961
(b) Value of perquisites u/s - - - - - -
17(2) Income-tax Act,1961
(c) Profits in lieu of salary - - - - - -
under section 17(3)
Income- tax Act,1961
2. Stock Option - - - - - -
3. Sweat Equity - - - - - -
4. Commission - - - - - -
- as % of profit
- others, specify...
5. Others, please specify - - - - - -
6. Total (A) 14475806 | 14475806 | 14475806 7720092 6803652 57951162
Ceiling as per the Act
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B. Remuneration to other directors:

i. Independent Director

Particulars of Remuneration Name of Directors Total Amount
Surinder Keshav D.
Kumar Bhoan Hodavdekar
Fees for attending Board/ committee meetings 20000 20000 40000
Commission - - -
Others - - -
Total 20000 20000 40000
ii. Other Non-executive directors:
Particulars of Remuneration Name of Nominee Directors Total
Atanu Sen Pradeep Rajeev Kumar | Suneet Shukla | Amount
(Statlﬁ:'i:;‘k i (':E:m:frl::::) (IDBIBank | (IFCI Limited)
Limited)
Fees for attending Board/ 20000 20000 20000 20000 80000
committee meetings
Commission - - - - -
Others - - - - -
Total 20000 20000 20000 20000 80000
C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD/ Manager/ WTD as on 31.03.2018
Sr. | Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel
No. Company Chief Financial Total
Secretary Officer
(K H Gopal) (Sunil O Khandelwal)
1. Gross salary
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in 12395119.92 12822246.26 | 25217366.18
section17(1) of the Income-tax Act,1961
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17 (2) Income-tax - - -
Act, 1961
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) - - -
Income-tax Act, 1961
2. Stock Option - - -
Sweat Equity - - -
4. Commission - - -
- as % of profit
- others, specify...
Others, please specify - - -
6. | Total 12395119.92 12822246.26 | 25217366.18
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VIL.

PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

There were no instances of non-compliances nor have any penalties, strictures been imposed by Stock Exchanges
or SEBI or any other statutory authority during the last three years on any matter related to the capital markets,
except imposition of fines by the National Stock Exchange of India Limited vide email dated December 27, 2016
and letters dated March 26, 2018 and July 15, 2018 in relation to delay in submission of quarterly financial
results for the period ending September, 2017 and March, 2018 respectively and by BSE Limited vide letter
dated September 19, 2018 in relation to delay in submission of quarterly financial results for the period ending
March, 2018 and June, 2018, required to be submitted with the Stock Exchanges under Clause 41 of the Listing
Agreement / Regulation 33 of the SEBI LODR Regulations.

The Company has also complied with and adopted the mandatory requirements of SEBI LODR Regulations
except (i) non-compliance with respect to submission of financial results mentioned in paragraph (9)(b) above,
and (ii) non-compliance with respect to the disclosures and filings required to be submitted by the Company,
with respect to non-convertible debentures issued by the Company, with the Stock Exchanges under the SEBI
LODR Regulations. The Company has vide e-mail dated 16 November 2018 to SEBI confirmed the compliance of
the relevant provisions under the SEBI LODR Regulations dealing with disclosures and submissions required to
be made with respect to non-convertible debentures for the period ending September 30, 2018. Further, the
Company has sought for relief from the non-compliance of the certain provisions of the SEBI LODR Regulations
for the period prior to commencement of the CIR Process of the Company.
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Annexure-3

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO
PURSUANT TO PROVISIONS OF SECTION 134 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013, READ WITH THE COMPANIES
(ACCOUNTS) RULES, 2014.

A.  CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

a) The steps taken or impact on conservation of energy

1.

2
3
4,
5.
6
7

Annual saving in coal boiler due to increase in feed water temperature with secondary heat recovery from
boiler blow down;

Annual saving in VAM cooling tower after VFD installation.

Stopping Overhead Travelling Cleaners (OHTC) on Ring Frame, Speed Frame, Link Coners;
Power savings by installing 125 KVA stabilizer in MLDB lighting;

Power savings by installing LED tube fixtures in place of conventional fixtures;

Power saving due to stoppage of impure nitrogen booster;

Energy savings by stopping unused pack pre-heaters

b)  The steps taken by the Company for utilizing alternate source of energy

Due to paucity of funds, the company has not been able to spend any amount on steps needed to utilize alternate
sources of energy.

B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION

No new technology has been absorbed during the year under review.

C.  FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

Foreign Exchange earned: Rs. 843.22 crores

Foreign Exchange outflow: Rs. 90.14 crores
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ANNEXURE -3
POWER & FUEL CONSUMPTION FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.03.2018
Particulars 2016-17 2017-18
A) POWER & FUEL CONSUMPTION
1) | Electricity Purchased
Units: 703,925,686 662,739,875
Total amount (Rs. In crores ) 299.23 279.89
Average Rate/Unit (Rs.) 4.25 4.20
2) | Own Generation through Diesel Generator Set
Units: 212,390 304,550
Total amount (Rs. in crores) 0.40 0.52
Average Rate/Unit (Rs.) 19.06 17.23
3) |a) Furnace Qil consumed
Total amount (Rs. in crores) 55.98 57.17
b) Natural Gas consumed
Total amount (Rs. in crores) 0.19 0.32
c¢) Coal consumed
Total amount (Rs. in crores) 46.13 51.44
d) Diesel Consumed
Total amount (Rs. in crores) 0.54 0.34
e) Electricity Duty Paid - -
(Rs. in Crores) 402. 47 389.68
B) | Consumption per unit of production
a) Yarn (Kgs) 136,836,087.49 | 123,731,426.01
Units consumed (per kgs) 1.08 1.10
b) Fabric Knits (Kgs) 5,167,862.67 5,180,297.55
Units consumed (per kgs) 0.61 0.56
c) Fabric Woven (Mtrs) 744,855,151.19 | 550,675,157.40
Units consumed (per mtrs) 0.13 0.19
d) Processing Woven (Mtrs) 51,112,289.20 | 46,947,892.15
Units consumed (per mtrs) 0.44 0.29
e) Processing Knits (kgs) 5,352,881.11 5,451,943.00
Units consumed (per kgs) 1.44 1.37
f) Garments (Pcs) 914,049.00 1,123,834.00
Units consumed (per pcs) 1.41 0.97
g) Made-ups (Sets/pcs) 5,022,092.00 7,428,583.00
Units consumed (per sets/pcs) 0.35 0.29
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Particulars 2016-17 2017-18
h) POY (Kgs) 148,515,520.60 | 127,761,332.85
Units consumed (per kgs) 0.42 0.43
i)  Spinning (Kgs) 39,290,074.69 | 38,734,871.54
Units consumed (per kgs) 6.01 5.63
j)  Handkerchief (Pcs) 6,516,883.00 3,240,724.00
Units consumed (per pcs) 0.06 0.11
k) Chips (kgs) 223,250,376.99 | 197,531,284.02
Units consumed (per kgs) 0.16 0.18
) FDY (Kgs) 46,692,543.41 | 45,129,445.02
Units consumed (per kgs) 1.07 1.06
m) Packing Material (pcs) 17,146,709.00 | 10,990,417.00
Units consumed (per pcs) 0.06 0.08
n) Embroidery Fabric (Mtrs) 9,566,504.33 | 10,885,172.06
Units consumed (per mtrs) 0.82 0.71
o) Polyester Staple Fiber (Kgs) 28,313,600.67 | 25,326,061.87
Units consumed (per kgs) 0.38 0.39
p) Yarn Dyed (Kgs) 1,549,901.23 |  2,583,645.00
Units consumed (per kgs) 2.21 1.81
q) Terry Towel (kgs) 2,450,018.96 3,195,726.00
Units consumed (per kgs) 5.97 5.04

C) | Foreign Exchange Earnings & Outgo (Rs. in Crores) | (Rs.in Crores)

1) | Total Earnings of Foreign Exchange
FOB Value of Export 1002.85 843.22
Total 1002.85 843.22

2) | Total Outgo in Foreign Exchange* (Rs. in Crores) | (Rs. in Crores)
Commission on sales 6.24 21.71
Interest on term loan 143.75 63.45
Legal and professional fees 0.74 0.39
Sales promotion expenses 0.15 0.14
Bank charges 3.34 2.30
Miscellaneous expenses 2.52 2.15
Total 156.75 90.14

* The expenses shown include amounts that have been accrued but not paid out.
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Annexure- 4

Information required under Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 Personnel) Rules, 2014

A. The Ratio of Remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of all the employees of the
Company for FY 2017-18 is as given below:

Name of Director Total Remuneration | Ratio of Remuneration of Director to
(Rs) in lakhs the Median Remuneration

Mr. Ashok B. Jiwrajka 144.76 95.24
Mr. Dilip B. Jiwrajka 144.76 95.24
Mr. Surendra B. Jiwrajka 144.76 95.24
Mr. Surinder Kumar Bhoan 0.20 0.13
Mr. Atanu Sen 0.20 0.13
Mr. Rajeev Kumar 0.20 0.13
Mr. Tulsi Tejwani 68.03 44.76
Mr. Senthilkumar M A 77.20 50.79
Mr. Keshav D. Hodavdekar 0.20 0.13
Mr. Suneet Shukla 0.20 0.13
Mr. Pradeep Kumar Rath 0.20 0.13

Note: Median Remuneration of the Company for all employees who were there in employment throughout the
year (7927 employees) is Rs. 1.52 lakhs for the financial year 2017-18.

B. Details of percentage increase in the remuneration of each Director, CFO and Company Secretary in the
financial year 2017-18 are as follows:

Name and Designation of Director Remuneration (Rs.in lakh) % increase
2016-17 2017-18
Mr. Ashok B. Jiwrajka Executive Director 150.00 144.76 (0.03)
Mr. Dilip B. Jiwrajka Managing Director 150.00 144.76 (0.03)
Mr. Surendra B. Jiwrajka Joint Managing Director 150.00 144.76 (0.03)
Mr. Surinder Kumar Bhoan Independent Director/ 1.00 0.20 (0.80)
Chairman
Mr. Atanu Sen Nominee Director 0.60 0.20 (0.67)
Mr. Rajeev Kumar Nominee Director 0.60 0.20 (0.67)
Mr. Tulsi Tejwani Executive Director 71.46 68.03 (0.52)
Mr. Senthilkumar M A Executive Director 81.02 77.20 (0.05)
Mr. Keshav D. Hodavdekar Independent Director 0.20 0.20 -
Mr. Suneet Shukla Nominee Director - 0.20 -
Ms. Thankom T. Mathew Independent Director -- - -
Mr. Pradeep Kumar Rath Nominee Director 0.40 0.20 (0.50)
Mr. Sunil O Khandelwal Chief Financial Officer 123.00 128.22 4.24
Mr. K. H. Gopal Company Secretary 146.19 123.95 (15.21)
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Percentage increase in the median remuneration of all employees in the financial year 2017-18:

Particulars 2016-17 2017-18 % increase
(Rs. In lakh) (Rs.in lakh)
Median remuneration of all employees per annum 1.45 1.52 -

The median remuneration for each year has been arrived at, on the basis of remuneration of employees in
employment throughout the relevant financial year.

Number of permanent employees on the rolls of the Company as on 31 March, 2018:
As on 31* March 2018, a total of 10879 employees were on the rolls of the Company.
Explanation on the relationship between average increase in remuneration and company performance:

In view of the continued losses, there has been no increase in the salary of personnel except for statutory
increase due to increase in Minimum Wages and the consequent impact on retiral and other benefits that are
linked to the increase in the minimum wages.

Details of Share price and market capitalization:

The details of variation in the market capitalization and price earnings ratio at the closing date of the current and
previous financial years are as follows:

Particulars As on As on % increase/

31 March, 2017 | 31t March, 2018 decrease
Price Earning Ratio Rs.(8.74) Rs.(0.02) (99.77%)
Market Capitalisation (Rs. in million) Rs.406.30 crore | Rs.406.30 crore No change

Percentage increase over / decrease in the market quotations of the shares of the Company as compared to the
rate at which the Company came out with the last public offer in the year:

The market capitalization as on 315t March, 2018 was Rs.406.30 crore and the closing price of the share at NSE
was Rs.2.95 per equity share of the face value of Rs.10/- each. The Company’s shares are listed on Bombay Stock
Exchange Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited.

Comparison of average percentage increase in salary of all employees and the percentage increase in salary
of Key Managerial Personnel:

Not applicable, as there was no increase in salary of all employees and key managerial personnel during the year
under review. However, average percentage increase in salary may very due to attrition/ increase in employees
of the company.

Key parameters for any variable component of remuneration availed by the Directors:

The key parameters for variable component of the remuneration to the Directors are recommended by the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee in accordance with the laid down Remuneration Policy. The Board
approves the compensation of Executive Directors. The remuneration to Directors is within the overall limits
approved by the shareholders vide their resolution passed at the Annual General Meeting dated 29.09.2017 as
per the provisions of the Companies Act 2013 in view of losses incurred by the company.

There are no employees of the Company who receive remuneration in excess of the highest paid Director of
the Company.

Affirmation:

Pursuant to Rule 5(1)(xii) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)
Rules, 2014, it is affirmed that the remuneration paid to the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior
Management is as per the Remuneration Policy of the Company.
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Annexure-5

Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2018

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,
The Members,
ALOK INDUSTRIES LIMITED

| have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to
good corporate practices by ALOK INDUSTRIES LIMITED (hereinafter referred to as “the Company”). Secretarial Audit
was conducted in a manner that provides me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory
compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the Company books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized
representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Audit, | hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has, during
the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31 March, 2018 has prima facie complied with the statutory
provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has prima facie proper Board-processes and compliance-
mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

| have examined the books, papers, minutes’ books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the
Company for the financial year ended on 31 March, 2018 according to the provisions of:

(i)  The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the Rules made there under;

(ii)  The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the Rules made there under;
(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under;
(

iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to the extent of
Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings - Not Applicable
during the audit period;

(v)  The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992
(SEBI Act):-

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations,
2011;

(b)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

Though the following laws are prescribed in the format of Secretarial Audit Report by the Government, the same
were not applicable to the Company for the financial year ended 31t March, 2018:-

(@) TheSecurities And Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,2009;
(b)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014;

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and listing of Debt securities) Regulations,2008;

(

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations,
1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009;
(f)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations,1998;
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(vi)

(vii)

The following laws are applicable to the Company :-

a) The Payment of Wages Act, 1936

b) The Minimum Wages Act, 1948

c) The Employees State Insurance Act, 1948

d) The Employees Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952
e) The Payment Of Bonus Act, 1965

f)  The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972

g) The Maternity Benefit Act, 1961

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(h)  The Maharashtra Shop and Establishments Act, 1948
(i)  The Industrial Employment (Standing Orders) Act, 1946
(j)9. The Apprentices Act, 1961

(k)  The Employees’ Compensation Act, 1923

() The Maharashtra Industrial Relations Act, 1946

(m) The Factories Act, 1948

(n)  The Contract Labour (Regulation and Abolition) Act, 1970
(

0) The Maharashtra Mathadi, Hamal and Other Manual Workers (Regulation of Employment and Welfare)
Act, 1969

p) The Child Labour (Prohibition and Regulation) Act, 1986

(

(q) The Industrial Disputes Act, 1947

(r)  The Maharashtra Workmen’s Minimum House-Rent Allowance Act, 1983
(

s)  The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013
| have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(a) The Listing agreements entered into by the Company with Stock Exchanges read with Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (SEBI LODR
Regulation)

(b)  Secretarial Standards 1 and 2 issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

During the period under review the Company has prima facie complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. except (i) non-compliance with respect to submission of quarterly
financial results to the stock exchanges under Clause 41 of the Listing Agreement / Regulation 33 of the SEBI
LODR Regulations and (ii) non-compliance with respect to the disclosures and filings required to be submitted
by the Company, with respect to non-convertible debentures issued by the Company, with the Stock Exchanges
under the SEBI LODR Regulations.

| further report that:

(a) Pursuant to an application made by State Bank of India, the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal,
Ahmedabad bench, vide its order dated 18 July 2017 had ordered the commencement of the corporate
insolvency resolution process in respect of the company under the provisions of the Insolvency and
Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (the “Code”). Thereafter, in accordance with Section 17 of the Code, the powers
of the Board of Directors stood suspended and Mr. Ajay Joshi was appointed as interim resolution
professional of the Company who was later confirmed as Resolution Professional of the Company on 16
August, 2017 for the management of the affairs of the Company.
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(b)

(c)

(d)

the Company was required to amend the Authorized Share Capital of the Company to Rs. 4,000 crore
from Rs. 1,500 crore through an Extra Ordinary General Meeting (EOGM) in order to accommodate
the conversion of debt into equity under the SDR provisions. A Singapore based bank led consortium
through their security trustee, Hong Kong and Shanghai Banking Corporation (HSBC) filed a petition
in the Bombay High Court for winding up the Company and further prayed for stalling the EOGM to
protect their interest. The Court, however, allowed the EOGM to be conducted on submission of an
affidavit by the Company that the resolutions passed at the EOGM for change in capital structure will
not be implemented without obtaining prior written approval from HSBC. The Company filed a letter
with the Registrar of Companies, Ahmedabad citing the circumstances due to which the change in
capital structure could not be implemented. The petition filed by HSBC has since been withdrawn by
the Bombay High Court. Accordingly, the company has given effect to the enhanced Authorized Share
Capital in FY 2017-18.

During the period under review only one Board meeting was conducted on 30 May, 2017 as The
Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Ahmedabad Bench (NCLT) has admitted the application filed
by the Lenders and commenced Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process against the Company under
the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 on 18" July 2017 and, therefore, the powers of Board of
Directors of the Company stand suspended and the said powers are being exercised by the RP. As a
result thereof, Committee of creditors was formed and 11 meetings were held during the period under
review

During the period under review, there have been late filings to the stock exchanges in certain instances
- Regulation 30(6) LODR, 2015, Regulation 44(3) LODR, 2015,

As per the Statutory Auditors’ Report and information provided by the Company, the Company has granted
unsecured loans to its wholly owned subsidiaries without any interest.

Annual Listing Fees to National Stock Exchange of India Limited have been paid up to 31 March, 2017 and in
respect of Bombay Stock Exchange Limited, the same has been paid up to 31 March, 2017.

For the compliance with the other applicable laws, we are relying on the certificate given by Advocate Mr. Mohit
Kapoor from K.N. Kapoor & Co.

| further Report that:

(a)

(b)

(e)

| rely on Statutory Auditors’ Report in relation to the financial statements, qualifications and accuracy of
financial figures for, Sales Tax, Value Added Tax, Related Party Transactions, Provident Fund, ESIC, FERA
etc. as disclosed under financial statements.

In terms of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Third Amendment) Regulations, 2018,
acompany undergoing the corporate insolvency resolution process is not required to comply with relevant
Regulations of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 dealing with
the requirements of, amongst others, composition of board of directors including that of independent
director, constitution, meetings and terms of reference of the audit committee, constitution, meetings
and terms of reference of the nomination and remuneration committee, constitution, meetings and terms
of reference of the stakeholders’ relationship committee.

As per the information provided, the Company has prima facie given adequate notice to all directors to
schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were prima facie sent at least seven
days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on
the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

As per the information provided, majority decision is carried through, while the dissenting members’
views are prima facie captured and recorded as part of the minutes.

The management is responsible for compliances of all applicable laws including business laws. This
responsibility includes maintenance of statutory registers/records/ fillings and statements required by
the concerned authorities and internal control of the concerned department.
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(8)

| report that there are prima facie adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with
the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules,
regulations and guidelines subject to observations and qualifications, if any made by Statutory Auditors
in their report.

During the audit period the Company has no specific events like Public/Right/Preferential issue of shares/
debentures/sweat equity/ ESOP etc.

| further report that:

1.

Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the Management of the Company. My
responsibility is to express an opinion on these Secretarial Records based on my audit.

I have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance
about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to
ensure that correct facts are reflected in the Secretarial records. | believe that the processes and practices,
| followed provide a reasonable basis for my opinion.

Wherever required, | have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of Laws, Rules
and Regulations and happening of events etc.

I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of the books of accounts of the Company including
loans and guarantees to the domestic and overseas subsidiaries and the Compliance certificate issued by
Advocate Mr. Mohit Kapoor in relation to the other applicable Laws.

The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable Laws, Rules, Regulations, Standards
is the responsibility of the Management. My examination was limited to the verification of procedures on
test basis.

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the
efficacy or effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Virendra Bhatt

Mumbai, 10* August, 2018 ACS No - 1157

COP No-—-124
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Alok Industries (‘Alok’ or ‘the Company’) is one of India’s
leading textiles Company with a presence across the
value chain of both cotton and polyester products. The
Company has been servicing a wide customer base
spread across the world including major global brands
and also has certain international operations.

The Company had been facing significant challenges in
servicing its debt obligations over the years and debt
restructuring efforts could not bear fruit.

The Honorable National Company Law Tribunal,
Ahmedabad bench, (“Adjudicating Authority”) vide
its order dated 17 July 2017, initiated corporate
insolvency resolution (“CIR”) process of the Company
in accordance with the provisions of the Insolvency and
Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (“Code”). In terms of Section
23 of the Code read with Section 25 of the Code, the
powers of the Board of Directors stand suspended and
the management of the affairs of the Company vests in
the resolution professional of the Company i.e. Mr. Ajay
Joshi. Please refer to the discussion on revival plan of
the Company for further details.

1 Economic Overview
1.2 Global Economy Overview

Global economy strengthened in 2017. Global GDP
growth, which in 2016 was the weakest since the
global financial crisis at 3.2%, rose to 3.8% in 2017.
Major economic indicators continue to improve in
a majority of the countries, and approximately
2/3 of countries globally witnessed stronger
growth in 2017 as compared to previous year.
At the global level, growth is expected to remain
stable at 3% in 2018 and 2019.

Chart 1: Real GDP Growth of World Economies for
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Chart 1 illustrates the growth in the overall global
economy along with advanced and emerging
economies. Advanced economies grew by 0.6
percentage points in 2017 to reach 2.3%, while
emerging markets and developing economies saw
growth of 0.4 percentage points in 2017 to reach
4.8%, as compared to 2016.

Global inflation remained stable in 2017 at a
rate of 3%?, increasing by 0.2 percentage points
from 2016. Despite low unemployment in many
developed economies, wage pressures generally
remained weak. This could be a result of rising
inequality and limited bargaining power of people
belonging to lower income scales.

Global productivity saw a cheerful uplift in 2017.
After growing by a rate of only 1.3% in 2015 and
2016, global labour productivity increased by
approximately 1.9% in 2017. Revival in global
investments has played an important role in
improving the global productivity levels. Growth
in labour productivity was observed in countries
across the globe. Among developed economies,
Japan, U.S. and Western Europe have witnessed
productivity growth strengthening over the
past year, albeit from low levels. Average labour
productivity growth in developed economies is
estimated to have increased from 0.5% in 2016 to
1% in 20172

The U.S. economy performed well in 2017,
according to the key economic indicators.
U.S.s GDP growth rate improved from 1.5%
in 2016 to 2.3% in 2017, and it is expected to
remain between 2%-3% range in near future.
Unemployment rate stood at 4.4% in 2017,
declining marginally by 0.5 percentage points as
compared to previous year. Inflation/average
consumer price index stood at 245 in 2017,
increasing at 2% y-o-y as compared to 2016.! This
is a positive sign for the US economy as inflation
is returning to target i.e. 2%. Labour productivity
saw an average annual growth of ~0.8% during
the last decade (2008-2017), however much lower
than the 1997-2007 annual growth of 2%>.

1 World Economic Outlook, April 2018, International Monetary Fund
2 World Economic Situation and Prospects, 2018, United Nations

3 Economic Survey of the United States, 2018, Organization for Economic Co-operation and Development (OECD)

46



1.2

After years of crisis, European Union economy is
gaining momentum. European Union’s economy
witnessed y-o-y growth of 0.6 percentage points
in 2017 to reach at a level of 2.6% while inflation
increased to 1.7% as compared to 0.2% in 2016.
Rise in inflation was primarily because of increase
in prices of oil and fruit & vegetables as a result
of bad weather conditions. Unemployment rate in
EU saw a downward trend last year, declining from
7.6% in 2016 to 7.4% in 2017.' As of now, UK'’s
vote to exit the European Union, low potential
growth, and an ageing population are all important
challenges for EU’s economy. For strengthening of
economic condition, the European Union would
need to focus on development of policies that
support a stronger and more inclusive growth.

Japan’s economy, world’s third largest, grew at
1.7% in 2017. Unemployment rate has declined
from 3.1% in 2016 to 2.9% in 2017. Inflation
remains low, i.e. 0.5% y-o-y growth in 2017. After
two decades of economic stagnation, Japan’s
return to growth may be hampered by the twin
challenges of an ageing population and the
mountain of public debt built up.

China’s GDP has been declining since 2010. Its
growth in 2017 remained high, pegged at 6.9% but
is expected to gradually decline as the population
is ageing and economy witnessing a shift from
investment to consumption focused. Total
investment, as percent of GDP has declined over
the past 5 years (47.2% in 2012 to 44.4 in 2017)
and is expected to decrease further.?

At an overall level, trade is anticipated to rise as
a result of the stronger domestic demand in the
US. In Europe too, economic activity in 2018 and
2019 is projected to remain stronger. Moreover,
the advanced economies in Asia are expected to
deliver stronger growth, while the emerging and
developing ones are expected to grow at around
6.5% over 2018-19, broadly the same as in 2017.

Indian Economy Overview

Indian economy is showing signs of recovery
after a continuous decline since 2015. Indian
economy is gradually recovering from the impact
of demonetization in late 2016 and GST rollout
around second quarter of 2017. Moreover, it is
anticipated that India will recover fast with time in
near future, bringing the major economic reforms

LY

INDUSTRIES LIMITED

to action. Tax reforms can make growth more
inclusive in India and boost productivity.

Chart 2: GDP Growth rate in India (%)
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Major policy changes like demonetization and GST
rollout may have dampened GDP growth in the
short-term, but it could also prove to have long-
term benefits. It enhanced digital transactions to a
large extent, which are now easier to track.

It is worth mentioning that, key financial
indicators like inflation and fiscal deficit improved
significantly in 2017. Inflation rate in 2017 saw
the largest decline since past four years. Average
inflation rate in India declined to 3.6 % in 2017 as
compared to 4.5 %in 2016.' The decline in inflation
was broad-based across major commodity groups,
except housing, fuel and light. This decline in
inflation rate is attributed to weaker domestic
demand, combined with structural factors such
as better food management by the current
government. Fiscal deficit of the country has
reduced from a level of 4.5% of GDP in 2013-14
to 3.24% of GDP in 2017-18* Unemployment has
remained stagnant from last three years (2015-
17), at 3.5%.* Moreover, it is encouraging to note
that, India got 100 rank in Ease of doing business
index, as per World Bank’s ‘Doing Business 2018:
Reforming to Create Jobs’ report climbing 30 ranks
over previous year.

During 2017, Government of India took several
steps towards strengthening of its workforce. For
instance, increased maternity benefits to 26 weeks
paid leaves from existing 12 weeks, increased
coverage for mandatory employee insurance i.e.
coverage increased from Rs 15,000 per month
to Rs 21,000 per month etc. Government also
has plans to make major labour law reforms at
the central and state levels and to introduce a
National Employment policy in order to promote
job creation and make growth more inclusive.

4 Public Information Bureau, Government of India
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Overview of Textile and Apparel Industry
Global Textile & Apparel Market Overview

Global apparel consumption stood at USS 1.8
trillion in 2017, which is expected to grow at
a CAGR of 4% to reach about USS 2.6 trillion by
2025. Europe and USA continue to be the largest
apparel markets with ~42% share in 2017.

Table 1: Current and future global apparel market
size (USS bn.)

S.No.| Region 2017 |2025(P) | CAGR
1 |EU-28 417 435 1%
2 | USA 341 389 2%
3 | China 210 500 10%
4 | Japan 99 109 1%
5 |India 67 160 11%
6 | Brazil 61 94 5%
7 | Russia 41 48 2%
8 | Canada 32 37 5%
9 |RoW 550 794 6%

Total 1,816 2,557 4%

Source: Wazir Analysis

China and India will be the fastest growing apparel
market in the coming years due to their growing
domestic demand. China is expected to overtake
EU and USA to become the largest apparel market
by 2025 with a share of 19% globally. EU and USA
will still remain the key global markets, however
their growth will be slow. India which currently
has ~4% share of the global apparel market, is
expected to grow its share to 6% by 2025.

Chart 3: Projected Apparel Market Share-2025
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Global Textile & Apparel Trade Overview -

Global textile and apparel trade in 2017 stood
at USS 750 bn. The same has grown at a CAGR
of 2% during last ten years. Global apparel trade
constitutes the majority share of 57% in the
overall trade of textile and apparel. Global textile
and apparel trade had witnessed a declining trend
since 2014, however, in 2017 trade grew by 1%
(y-0-y) indicating a resurgence in demand.

Chart 4: Global Textile & Apparel Trade (USS Bn.)
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China is the largest exporter with 37% share
in global textile and apparel exports in 2017,
followed by India with 5% share. Other major
exporters include Bangladesh, Germany, Italy and
Vietnam.

Chart 5: Top Textile & Apparel Exporters-2017
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Import Scenario of Major Textile and Apparel
Markets

European Union

Data from European Textile and Apparel
Confederation (EURATEX) suggests that overall
import of textiles and apparel into Europe across
all product types increased from USS 121 Bn. in
2016 to USS 127 bn. in 2017, with textile imports
up 6% to reach USS 34 bn while apparel imports
increased by 4%.



2.2

In apparel category, women’s-wear was the largest
category with 36% share followed by men’s wear
25% and babies wear 3%. China, Turkey, India,
Bangladesh, USA, Cambodia and Pakistan were
the major suppliers of textile and apparel products
to EU.

Chart 6: Textile & Apparel Imports (USS Bn.)
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United States

US imported textile and apparel products
worth USS 114 bn. in 2017, increasing by 0.5%
as compared to previous year. Apparel was
the largest imported category with 73% share
followed by home-textiles (11%) and fabrics (6%).
In apparel category, womenswear had the largest
share of 38% followed by menswear (27%) and
kidswear (3%). China was the largest supplier to US
accounting for 36% share. Other major suppliers
include Vietnam (11%), India (7%), Mexico (5%)
and Bangladesh (5%).

Indian Textile and Apparel Market Overview

Textile plays an important role in the Indian
economy. It contributes to ~14% to industrial
production and 4% to GDP. With over 45
million people, the industry is one of the largest
employers of the country. The size of India’s
textile and apparel market, was around USS$ 127
bn. in 2017. It is expected to touch USS 300 bn. by
the year 2025, growing at a CAGR of 11% between
2017-2025°.

Chart 7: Indian Textile & Apparel Market 2017
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Category wise Exports of India

Globally, India is ranked 2" in textile export with
6% share and 5% in apparel export with 4% share.
Overall, India holds second position with 5% share
of global textile & apparel exports. India’s textile
and apparel exports stood at USS 37 bn. in 2017
and have grown at 6% CAGR over the last decade.
Availability of raw material, skilled manpower
and favorable central & state govt. schemes
would further help Indian exporters increase their
market share and global competitiveness.

Apparel is the largest category exported from
India having a share of 47% in the total textile and
apparel exports during 2017. Home textiles is the
second largest category exported from India with
a share of 14%, followed by fabric exports (12%).

Share of fabric in textile and apparel exports from
India has seen a decline over the last decade with
16% share in 2008 to 12% in 2017. On the other
hand, share of apparel grew by 2% during the
last decade. Home-textiles share has remained
stagnant at 14% during the same period. India
is focusing toward export of apparel and home-
textile categories in order to capitalize on value
addition.

27

Chart 8: Indian Textile & Apparel Trade (USS bn.)
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India’s Manufacturing Scenario

The Indian textile industry is one of the largest
in the world with a large raw material base and
manufacturing strength across the value chain.
Presence of mill sector and handloom both
makes India’s textile industry unique as compared
to other textile industries of the world. With
an installed capacity of more than 50 million
spindles and more than 8 Lakh rotors, India’s
textile industry is the second largest in the world.”
Traditional sectors like handloom, handicrafts
and power-loom units are the biggest source of
employment for millions of people based in rural
and semi urban parts of India.

> Wazir Estimates
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Total fiber production in India decreased from
1,364 Mn. Kg. in 2016-17 to 1,319 Mn. Kg.in 2017-
18, witnessing a decline of 3%. Production of
yarn remained almost stagnant as compared to
previous year, pegged at 5,676 Mn. Kg. in 2017-18.
However, fabric production registered a growth of
5% from 63,480 Sqg. Mtr. in 2016-17 to 66,547 Sq.
Mtr. in 2017-18°.

Growth Drivers for the Indian Textile & Apparel
Industry

. Rising disposable income of the country:
India has a large population base with
more than 1.25 billion people. About half
of India’s population is under 25 years.
Young population of India will soon turn into
working population, resulting in increased
disposable income of the country. As a
result of the increased purchasing power,
major lifestyle categories would witness a
boost in demand. Apparel would be one of
the most important categories among other
lifestyle products.

° Women’s lifestyle shifting from home-
oriented to career oriented: Driven by
pressures of urban living, roles that an Indian
women have to play are getting redefined.
Along with household activities, women
have started contributing to household
income as well. India could boost its growth
by 1.5 percentage points to 9% per year if
around 50% of women join the work force.
Currently, rate of women’s participation in
workforce stands at 27% in India.” Number
of working women in urban area is expected
to get doubled from 3 crore in 2016 to 6
crore in 20258, Increasing number of women
in the workforce will boost the demand for
women’s work-wear segment.

. Shift from need based buying to aspiration
based buying: About a decade ago, people
in India purchased products as per their
requirements. But now, scenario has
changed completely. Consumers of India
have become more focused towards
improving their lifestyle and buying
aspiration based products more.

. Increased urbanization: India has witnessed
a drastic increase in urban population
as a result of rising industrialization and

expansion of cities. Growing urban culture
is also affecting rural areas on a large
scale. Increased urbanization has caused
population of India to indulge more into the
purchase of fashion and lifestyle products.
This is going to have a major impact on
growth of apparel consumption in India.

. Increased retail penetration: Growing
digitalization in India and increasing number
of internet users have resulted in surge
in online shopping. People find online
shopping more convenient and versatile in
terms of discounts, payment methods and
return/exchange. Growth in online retail will
also boost apparel sales in India.

Business Strategy

Alok Industries has created global scale of operations
across its value chain and has enjoyed significant
presence in domestic polyester filament yarn industry
and global textile markets in the earlier years. The
objective was to be prepared for the growing global
apparel and textiles market for Indian Textile Industry.
The strategy, accordingly was to create globally
competitive capabilities across the value chain in cotton
and polyester - to provide cotton yarn, finished fabrics
including embroidery fabrics, bed linen, terry towels and
polyester yarn. At peak level of operations, the Company
was exporting its products to over 90 countries.

Alok has uniquely positioned itself in the cotton and
polyester product streams. While in polyester there
is manufacturing of partially oriented yarn (PQY),
texturised yarn (DTY), fully drawn yarn (FDY) and
polyester staple fiber (PSF), on the cotton side there is
complete vertical integration from cotton spinning to
manufacturing of apparel fabrics, home textiles and
garments. While each of these business divisions are like
independent value generating entities, the focus is on
offering a comprehensive product suite to cater to the
ever demanding needs of customers .

Revival Plans for the Company and admission under
the corporate insolvency resolution process defined
under Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016

The Company was admitted under the CIR process
in terms of the Code vide an order of Adjudicating
Authority dated 18 July, 2017 (“Order”). Pursuant to
the Order, Mr. Ajay Joshi was appointed as the interim
resolution professional for the Company and was

¢ Office of the Textile Commissioner, Ministry of Textile
7 World Bank, ILOSTAT Database
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subsequently confirmed as the resolution professional
(“RP”) of the Company. During the CIR process, only one
resolution plan dated 12 April, 2018 (“Resolution Plan”)
was received from JM Financial Asset Reconstruction
Company Limited, JM Finance ARC — March 18 Trust
and Reliance Industries Limited jointly (“Resolution
Applicants”).

Pursuant to promulgation of the Insolvency and
Bankruptcy (Amendment) Ordinance dated 6 June
2018 (“Ordinance”), the voting threshold for approval
of Resolution Plan was reduced from 75% to 66%
of the voting share of the financial creditors. The
Adjudicating Authority in an application filed by Alok
Employees Benefit & Welfare Trust, vide its order dated
11 June 2018 directed the committee of creditors of
Company (“COC”) to re-look and proper consideration
of the Resolution Plan. Accordingly, in compliance
with the Order, the Resolution Plan submitted by the
Resolution Applicants was again placed before the COC
for consideration by the RP under Section 30 (4) of the
Code (as amended by the Ordinance). The Resolution
Plan was approved by the COC with 72.192% assenting
voting share. Subsequently, vide its order dated 25 June,
2018, the Adjudicating Authority granted liberty to the
RP to file the Resolution Plan for the approval of the
Adjudicating Authority under Section 31 of the Code.
The application filed by the RP for approval of Resolution
Plan on 11 July, 2018 is currently pending adjudication
before the Adjudicating Authority.

In terms of Section 25 of the Code, the Company is
continuing to operate as a going concern. Further, since
the application for approval of the Resolution Plan is
pending with the Adjudicating Authority, therefore
the financial statements of the Company are being
presented on a going concern basis.

It is pertinent to note that certain financial creditors
of the Company have filed applications before the
Adjudicating Authority as well as the Hon’ble National
Company Law Appellate Tribunal, New Delhi (“Appellate
Tribunal”), inter alia, challenging the Resolution Plan

of the Company. These applications are pending
adjudication before the respective tribunals. In the
event, the Adjudicating Authority and/or the Appellate
Tribunal (or any subsequent appeals) result in the
rejection of the Resolution Plan, the Company may be
liguidated upon the order of the Adjudicating Authority
/Appellate Tribunal/subsequent appellate authority.

Financial Performance (Stand Alone)

During the current financial year also Company’s sales
continued to decline and it made losses. The main
reason for losses were provisions / write off of debtors,
provisions for impairment in investment and loans
given to wholly owned subsidiaries of the Company and
finance cost.

The reason for provisioning and write off of debtors is
that over the last 4-5 years, manufacturing operations of
the Company started coming down and reached about
30% capacity utilisation level. As a measure to counter
the drop in sales, the Company increased the trading
business in the domestic un-organised market. But due
to the tight market situation, this market got affected
adversely leading to defaults in payments, a build-up
of debtors and elongation of the receivables cycle. The
rotational cycle in the market started to disrupt and
payments stopped against even the fresh supplies. Many
of these parties from the un-organised market were
small and fragmented traders who could not withstand
the tight market conditions and closed their operations.

The Company, inaccordance with the Generally Accepted
Accounting Policies and Standards, made a complete
provision for doubtful debts and wrote off debtors
where required. Looking at the deteriorating situation
in the un-organised market and recovery issues, the
trading business was discontinued from July 2017.

The stand-alone results give the analysis of the textile
business of the Company. Table 2 gives the summarised
profit and loss statement of the Company in the current
year compared to the previous year.

Table 2: Summarised Profit and Loss Account

(Rs. Crore)
FY 2018 FY 2017
e CHUREIC S ECEO R (12 Months Ended 31 March 2018) | (12 Months Ended 31 March 2017)
% to Sales % to Sales
Domestic Sales 4,459.13 7,243.08
Export Sales 922.82 1,082.98
Net Sales 5,381.95 8,326.07
Other Income 236.31 165.69
Total Income 5,618.26 8,491.76

8 Wazir Estimates
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FY 2018 FY 2017
PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNT (12 Months Ended 31 March 2018) | (12 Months Ended 31 March 2017)
Material Costs 5,161.20 95.90% 7,552.25 90.71%
People Costs 275.68 5.12% 283.31 3.40%
Other Expenses 13,175.14 244.80% 2,496.03 29.98%
Total Expenses 18,612.00 345.82% 10331.59 124.09%
EBIDTA (12,993.75) (241.43%) (1,839.83) (22.10%)
Depreciation (527.80) (9.81%) (512.63) (6.16%)
EBIT (13,521.56) (251.24%) (2,352.46) (28.25%)
Interest & Finance Costs (4,682.87) (81.44%) (3,273.52) (39.32%)
Profit / (Loss) Before Tax (18,204.43) (338.25%) (5,625.98) (67.57%)
Add/ (Less): Provision for Taxes (11.19) (0.21%) 2,123.56 (25.50%)
Profit / (Loss) After Tax (18,215.62) (338.46%) (3,502.42) (42.07%)

Profit and Loss Analysis

Net Sales for the year was Rs.5,381.95 crore
comprising of domestic sales of Rs. 4,459.13
crore and export sales of Rs. 922.82 crore. In the
previous year, the total sales were Rs. 8,326.06
crore comprising of domestic sales of Rs. 7,243.08
crores and export sales of Rs. 1,082.98 crore. The
Company continued to witnessed lower level of
operations due to working capital constraints.
During the year Company exited the trading
business due to losses and recovery issues on
account of depressed market conditions, which
has resulted into lower sales.

Other Income for the year was Rs. 236.31 crore
(previous year Rs. 165.69 crore). The major part
of the other income was comprising of interest
income on fixed deposit with banks kept for LC /
BG margin Rs. 5.82 crore (previous year Rs. 10.70
crore), deemed interest on loans & advances given
to subsidiary recognised under IND AS accounting
Rs. 130.63 crore (previous year Rs. 118.51 crore),
other interest Rs. 1.73 crore (previous year Rs.
0.68 crore) profit on sale of fixed assets, mainly
office premises, Rs. 57.32 crore (previous year nil),
exchange difference Rs. 13.94 crore (previous year
Rs. 14.36 crore), dividend income Rs. 1.98 crore
(previous year Rs. 1.67 crore), rent income Rs. 1.37
crore (previous year Rs. 1.46 crore, Sundry Credit
balances written back Rs. 19.29 crore (previous
year Rs. 0.04 crore) and miscellaneous income of
Rs. 2.62 crore (previous year Rs. 19.24 crore).

Material Cost was Rs. 5,161.20 crore in the
current financial year as compared to Rs. 7,552.25
crore in the previous period. As a percentage of
sales, material cost increased from to 90.71% in
the previous period to 95.90% in the current year.
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The increase in material cost is due to losses in
the trading business due to depressed market
conditions, inadequate working capital for better
purchase, pricing pressure on sales, change in
product mix, etc.

People Costs was Rs. 275.68 crore in the current
financial year as compared to Rs. 283.31 crore in
the previous period. As a percentage to sales, it
has increased to 5.12% as against 3.40% in the
previous period.

Other Expenses was Rs. 13,175.14 crore in the
current year as compared to Rs. 2,496.03 crore
in the previous period. The major items of other
expenses for the year was provision for doubtful
debtors Rs. 10,952.51 crore (previous year Rs.
118.22 crore), Provision for doubtful advances
Rs. 608.69 crore (previous year Rs. 1,056.61
crore), bad debts written off Rs. 585.51 crore
(previous year Rs. -1.04 crore), Power & Fuel Rs.
389.68 crore (previous year Rs. 402.47 crore),
diminution in the values of investments Rs.27.10
crore (pervious year Rs. 132.69 crore), packaging
material Rs. 114.46 crore (previous year Rs. 100.75
crore), Impairment of fixed assets Rs. 31.56 crore
(previous year nil), Sundry balances written off Rs.
66.60 crore (previous year Rs. 2.94 crore), etc.

Operating Earnings before Interest, Depreciation,
Tax and Amortization (EBIDTA), was loss of Rs.
12,993.76 crore for the year as compared to loss
of Rs. 1,839.82 crore in the previous year.

Depreciation is Rs. 527.80 crore in the current year
as compared to Rs. 512.63 crore in the previous
year.

Interest expense for the year was Rs. 4,682.87
crore as compared to Rs. 3,273.52 crore in the
previous period.



° Net Profit / (Loss) After Tax there was a loss of Rs. 18,215.62 crore in the current year against a loss of

Rs. 3,502.43 crore in the previous period.

Cash Flows

Table 3 gives the abridged cash flow statement of the Company

Table 3: Summarised Cash Flow Statement

(Rs. Crore)
T T FY2018 FY2017

31 March 2018 | 31 March 2017
Net cash (used in) /generated from operating activities (128.32) (98.06)
Net cash (used in) / generated from investing activities 194.05 (99.94)
Net cash (used in) / generated from financing activities (106.78) 251.60
Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents (41.05) 53.60
Cash and Cash equivalents as on year end
At the beginning of the period 72.17 18.57
At the end of the period 31.12 72.17
Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents (41.05) 53.60

Textiles Business: Operations Review

Overview

Alok is into single segment business i.e. Textiles. Within Textiles, Alok’s business mainly comprises of Cotton spinning,
Apparel fabric (Wovens & Knits), Home textiles (Sheeting & Terry Towel), Garments and Polyester. The division wise
sales and its bifurcation into domestic and export is given in table 4 and Chart-9 below:

Table 4: Snapshot of Alok’s product-group wise sales distribution

PARTICULARS

12 M YTD ENDED 31 MAR 2018

EXPORT | TOTAL

(Rs. Crore)

12 M YTD ENDED 31 MAR 2017

EXPORT | TOTAL

CHANGE

COTTON YARN 377.41 3.26| 380.68 7.07%| 547.94 22.58| 570.52 6.85%| (33.28%)
APPAREL FABRIC
WOVEN 2,290.65| 115.78| 2,406.43| 44.71%| 4,859.54| 142.44| 5,001.98| 60.08% | (51.89%)
KNITTING 130.16 46.48| 176.64 3.28% 56.16 33.30 89.46 1.07%| 97.44%
2,420.80| 162.26| 2,583.07| 47.99%| 4,915.70| 175.74| 5,091.44| 61.15%| (49.27%)
SHEETING 4.79| 525.63| 530.42 9.86% 2.78| 549.97| 552.75 6.64%| (4.04%)
TERRY TOWEL 39.62 28.09 67.71 1.26% 23.93 44.02 67.95 0.82%| (0.35%)
GARMENTS 8.26 39.47 47.73 0.89% 15.29 30.86 46.15 0.55% 3.42%
POLYESTER YARN | 1,608.23| 164.11| 1,772.35| 32.93%| 1,737.45| 259.80| 1,997.25| 23.99%| (11.26%)
TOTAL 4,459.12| 922.83| 5,381.95| 100.00% | 7,243.09 | 1,082.98 | 8,326.06 | 100.00% | (35.36%)
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Chart 9: Share of different product groups in total sales
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Chart 9 shows that the highest share of sales is
from woven apparel fabric accounting for 44.71%

Table 5: Regional Distribution of Exports

as compared to 60.08% in the Previous year. This is
followed by polyester yarn whose share has increased
from 23.99% in the previous year to 32.93% in the
current year, followed by sheeting (Bed sheets) whose
share has increased to 9.86% in the current year from
6.64 % in the previous year. The share of cotton spinning
for the current year was 7.07% as compared to 6.85%
in the previous year. The share of terry towels for the
current year was 1.26% as compared to 0.82% in the
previous period and lastly garment share was 0.89% as
compared to 0.55% in the previous year.

Exports

Alok’s export business was affected due to the liquidity
crunch adversely impacting production and uncertainty
in the minds of customers about getting timely delivery
due to the ongoing CIR process. Consequently, export
sales reduced to Rs.922.82 crore in the current year as
against Rs. 1, 082.98 crore in the previous period.

Table 5 gives the share of different regions in Alok’s
exports. The share of Alok’s exports to different regions
of the world is given in Chart 10. USA remains the
dominant market with 47.23% share in the current year.
The share of Asia has decreased from 35.34% in the
previous year to 31.19% in the current year, while that
of Europe has increased from 14.09% in the previous
year to 16.52% in the current year.

. 31 MAR 2018 31 MAR 2017

Reglons Rs. Crore USS Mn % of Exports Rs. Crore USS Mn % of Exports
Africa 22.24 3.49 2.41% 22.85 3.44 2.11%
Asia 287.80 45.17 31.19% 382.77 57.65 35.34%
Asia — Pacific 0.80 0.13 0.09% 0.96 0.14 0.09%
Europe 152.41 23.95 16.52% 152.54 22.92 14.09%
North America 5.15 0.81 0.56% 5.83 0.88 0.54%
South America 18.60 2.93 2.02% 51.89 7.81 4.79%
us 435.81 68.35 47.23% 466.13 70.15 43.04%
Total 922.82 144.83 100.00% 1,082.98 162.98 100.00%

Chart 10: Share of different regions in Alok’s exports
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Manufacturing Capacities
Table 6 gives the manufacturing capacities of the Company in different divisions.

Table 6: Alok’s Manufacturing Capacities

Division Units Capacity p.a. 2017-18
Spinning - Cotton Yarn Tons 68,000
Home Textiles

Sheeting Fabric Mn. Mtrs 90
Equivalent Sheet Sets Mn. Sets 16
Terry towels Tons 14,400
Apparel Fabrics

Woven fabric Mn. Mtrs 108
Knits Tons 18,000
Garments Mn. Pcs 10
Polyester

Continuous Polymerisation Tons 465,400
Partially Oriented Yarn (POY)/Chips Tons 322,200
Draw Texturised Yarn (DTY) (out of POY capacity) Tons 232,700
Full Drawn Yarn (FDY) Tons 57,280
Polyester Staple fibre / Cationic Yarn Tons 85,920
Master Batch Tons 5,400

Quality, Safety, Health and Environment

At Alok, continuous efforts at developing world class processes and quality assurance are a fundamental and non-
negotiable part of the way business is conducted. There is regular focus in manufacturing and allied practices to adhere
to the concept of ‘get it right - first time and every time’. To achieve this, the Company’s products, manufacturing
processes and equipment are rigorously checked for quality standards and process deviations, if any.

The Company’s adherence to internationally recognized certification standards and compliances has been recognized
by renowned certification bodies (see Table 7). Today, the Company has the following accreditations:

Table 7: Certification- Division, Plants & Location Covered

Certification Division / Plant / Location

ISO 14001:2015 (EMS) Process House, Vapi (Normal & Wider width)
OHSAS 18001:2007 (Integrated Management e Terry Towel, Vapi

System) .

Weaving, Silvassa

e CP, POY, FDY,PSF and Texturizing, Silvassa

e Spinning and Knitting, Silvassa

e Embroidery, Silvassa

¢ Made Ups & Garments, Vapi
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Certification Division / Plant / Location

Social Accountability o

Process House, Vapi (Normal & Wider width)

Weaving, Silvassa

Made Ups & Garments, Silvassa

Terry Towel Division, Vapi

Made Ups & Garments — Vapi

GOTS: Global Organic Textile Standards/ OCS- .

Head Office, Mumbai

Organic Content Standard. R

Spinning & Knitting Division, Silvassa

Weaving Division, Silvassa

Process House (Normal & Wider Width), Vapi

Made-ups & Garments Division, Silvassa

Terry Towel Division, Vapi

Hemming Division, Silvassa

Made-ups Division, Vapi

Embroidery Division, Silvassa

Fair Trade .

Spinning & Knitting Division, Silvassa

Weaving Division, Silvassa

Process House (Normal & Wider Width), Vapi

Made-ups & Garments Division, Silvassa

Terry Towel Division, Vapi

Hemming Division, Silvassa

Made-ups Division, Vapi

OEKO Tex Standard — Product Class .

Made —ups (Product Class | & Il)

| &I *

Woven & Knitted Fabric (Product Class | & 1)

Texturized Yarn (Product Class I)

Cotton and blended yarn (Product Class 1)

Terry Towels (Product Class | & I1)

Garments (Product Class I)

NABL .

Process House Lab Normal Width, Vapi

Alok also holds the following certifications:

e NABL Lab Certification 1ISO 17025:2005 for Normal
Width plant, Vapi

e Egyptian Cotton Certificate

e TS 16949:2009 (Automotive standard) —Polyester
Plant, Silvassa

In addition to the certifications, Alok’s performance,
especially in exports of cotton goods and polyester

yarn have been recognized through successive awards
from TEXPROCIL and SRTEPC over the years.

Human Resource

Alok has always maintained that one of the key
resources it has are its human resources and it takes all
care to ensure that employees remain connected and
motivated. The fact that most of the key employees
continued with the Company in these challenging
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times by itself indicates the commitment of its human
resources. During the period under review, employee
training and engagement activities could not be taken
up due to difficult operating conditions.

Subsidiaries - Textiles
Mileta

Through its step down subsidiary Alok Industries
International Limited, Alok has a 100% stake in
Mileta, a Czech based fabric manufacturing Company.
Mileta’s facilities are located in Horice (Weaving and
Administration) and Cerny Dul (Processing) in the Czech
Republic.

Mileta has high end technological skill in yarn-dyed
fabrics and hemming that results in higher per unit
realisations. The Mileta range of products includes
handkerchiefs, high quality shirting, batistes and voiles,
complete line of functional table linen and bed linen.
Alok also uses Mileta’s extensive marketing network
in Europe, Russia and Africa to promote its existing
products.

Subsidiaries
UK Retail: Store Twenty One

Alok held a 99.87% equity in Grabal Alok (UK) Ltd (Grabal
(UK), a Company that used to operate the ‘Store Twenty
One’ chain of value-format stores in UK, through its step
down subsidiary Alok Industries International Limited
and Grabal Alok International Limited.

Table 8: Consolidated Profit and Loss Summary

The Company was continuously making losses and during
the period under review it underwent restructuring by
way of Creditors Voluntary Arrangement (CVA) and also
stores which were making losses were closed down.
However, the CVA scheme could not be implemented
due to scarcity of funds and finally Grabal Alok UK was
taken under liquidation on 10% July 2017. The process
of liquidation is on presently. Considering this, the
Company has made full provision of the investment /
advances given to the said subsidiary.

Real Estate: Alok Infrastructure Limited

The Company had made investments in the realty
sector through its 100% subsidiary Alok Infrastructure
Limited. The plan was to create value and monetise
the same at the right opportunity. However, depressed
market conditions in the real estate space resulted in:
(i) the Company having to dispose off some of its assets
at losses and (ii) restricting the Company’s ability to
monetise the land bank at Silvassa. The Company has
sold its investment in two joint ventures (held through
Alok Infrastructure Limited) in the course of the financial
year ending 31 March 2018. The Company has also
provided for the loans / advances to the extent not
recoverable from its subsidiaries.

The performance of all of subsidiaries and step down
subsidiaries are given in table 10.

Consolidated Results

Tables 8, 9, and 10 give the profit and loss highlights,
balance sheet highlights and Company wise sales of Alok
as a consolidated entity

(Rs. Crore)
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Particulars
Amount % to Sales Amount % to Sales
Net Sales 5562.08 8,919.42
Other Income 256.61 65.58
Total Income 5,818.69 8,985.00
Material Costs 5,284.67 95.01% 7,940.12 89.02%
People Costs 323.19 5.81% 329.07 3.69%
Other Expenses 13,522.03 243.11% 2,106.17 23.61%
Total Expenses 19129.90 343.93% 10,375.37 116.32%
Operating EBIDTA (13,311.20) (239.32%) (1,390.37) (15.59%)
Depreciation (544.61) (9.79%) (560.71) (6.29%)
Operating EBIT (13,855.82) (249.11%) (1,951.07) (21.87%)
Interest (4,711.33) (84.70%) (3441.80) (38.59%)
Operating Profit Before Tax (18,567.15) (333.82%) (5,392.88) (60.46%)
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